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3Di vision of Commission Clerk and 
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2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

Re: 	 Application for Transfer of Majority Organizational Control of CWS 
Communities LP d/b/a Palm Valley, Holder of Certificate Nos. 277-W and 223-S 
in Seminole County 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Enclosed for filing, on behalf of CWS Communities LP, are an original and twelve copies 
of an application for transfer of majority organizational control of CWS -Communities LP d/b/a 
Palm Valley, holder of Certificate Nos. 277-W and 223-S in Seminole County. 

Also, enclosed is a check in the amount of $3 ,750.00 as payment for the filing fee of this 
application, in the amount of $3 ,000.00, and $750.00 as payment for the filing fee of an 
application we filed February 6, 2002, opening Docket No. 020102-WU. 

Please open a docket to consider this matter. 

Please contact me if you have any questions. 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Application for Transfer of Majority 
Organizational Control of CWS Communities ) Docket No. 0 a 0 2 2 @us 
LP d/b/a Palm Valley, Holder of Certificate 
Nos. 277-W and 223-S in Seminole County 

) 

) 
) 

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF MAJORITY ORGANIZATIONAL 
CONTROL OF CWS COMMUNITIES LP D/B/A PALM VALLEY, HOLDER 

OF CERTIFICATE NOS. 277-W AND 223-S IN SEMINOLE COUNTY 

CWS Communities LP d/b/a Palm Valley (“Utility”), by and through its undersigned 

attomeys, hereby fiIes its Application for Transfer of Majority Organizational Control, and in 

support thereof states: 

1 .  Prior to transfer, majority organizational control of the Utility was in: 

CWS Communities Trust 
7777 Market Center Ave. 
El Paso, TX 79912 

2. Majority organizational control of CWS Communities LP d/b/a Palm Valley has 

been transferred to: 

CP Limited Partnership 
known in Florida as Chateau Communities Limited Partnership 
6 160 South Syracuse Way 
Greenwood Village, CO 801 11 

3. The name and address of the authorized representative of the Utility and the 

person to receive a copy of all papers, pleadings, and filings in this case is: 

TAL:34187:1 

Kathryn G. W. Cowdery, Esq. 
Ruden, McClosky, Smith, Schuster & Russell, P.A. 
215 South Monroe Street, Suite 815 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
Telephone: (850) 68 1-9027 
Facsimile: (850) 224-2032 



4. The transfer of majority organizational control of CWS Communities LP d/b/a 

Palm Valley was part of a larger mergerjacquisition transaction effective August 3, 2001. The 

transfer of majority organizational control of the Utility occurred as a result of OP unit 

(operating partnership unit)/stock transfer. The transfer was made contingent upon PSC 

approval, consistent with the provisions of Q 367.071(1), Fla. Stat. A copy of the Agreement as 

to Transfer of Florida Public Service Commission Certificated Utilities is attached hereto as 

Attachment “A.” 

5 .  The Utility is still owned by CWS Communities LP. Following the merger 

transaction, CP Limited Partnership, the operating partnership, known in Florida as Chateau 

Communities Limited Partnership (“CCLP”), became the general partner of Utility. Chateau 

Communities, Inc. (“CCI”) is the general partner of CCLP. Information regarding CCLP, CCI, 

and CCI’s officers and directors is included in CCI’s 2000 Annual Report, a copy of which is 

attached hereto as Attachment “B.” 

6 .  The transfer is in the public interest because the Palm Valley customers will 

continue to receive the same quality service to which they are accustomed. Regarding technical 

ability, the Utility is retaining the local management team that has operated the water and 

wastewater utility for the past ten years. At this time, the Utility provides safe and reliable water 

and wastewater service to its customers. CWS Communities LP will continue to own and 

operate two other PSC regulated utilities in the State of Florida: 

a. CWS Communities LP d/b/a Crystal Lake Club, holder of Certificate Nos. 

525-W and 454-S in Highlands County (application for transfer of majority organizational 

control pending at the PSC). 
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b. CWS Communities LP, holder of Certificate Nos. 5 18-W in Lake County 

(application for transfer of majority organizational control pending at the PSC). Due to the 

merger transaction, the Utility now has the benefit through CCLP and CCI of Utilities Director 

Mr. Robert S. Munro. Mr. Munro has been and remains Utilities Director for the water andor 

wastewater utilities owned by CCLP in Florida. (Attachment “C” hereto.) Each utility is staffed 

with licensed and trained personnel. CCLP is committed to providing safe and reliable water and 

wastewater service to its residents and customers. 

7. The Utility will continue to have financial ability to provide service. See 

Attachment “B” hereto, containing the consolidated financial statement of CCI, CCLP’ s general 

partner. CCLP will provide the financial stability required to maintain the utility system in 

accordance with Commission standards and environmental regulations. The Utility will continue 

to fulfill all of its commitments, obligations and representations with regard to utility matters. 

The books and records of the Utility shall continue to be maintained in Florida, in compliance 

with Fla. Admin. Code R. 25-30.11 5(  1). 

8. Afler reasonable investigation, the water and wastewater systems appear to be in 

satisfactory condition and in compliance with all applicable standards set by the DEP. The 

utility wastewater treatment system is operating under DEP Amendment to Consent Order 94- 

1144. Attachment “D” hereto. Pursuant to that consent order, the Utility is expanding the 

wastewater disposal system and adding additional wastewater capacity. The Utility is meeting 

the time frames outlined in the Consent Order. 

9. Since the ownership of the Utility has not changed, no changes need to be made to 

the Certificates or Tariff, and copies are therefore not attached hereto. Likewise, no changes 
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have been made to the ownership of the real property upon which the utility facilities are located, 

which property remains dedicated to public utility use. 

10. The utility has the capacity to serve up to 721 ERCs for water and 807 ERCs for 

wastewater. An application fee in the amount of $3000 as provided by 5 367.145, Fla. Stat., and 

Fla. Admin. Code R. 25-30.020(2)(~), is attached hereto. 

11. The affidavit required by sections 367.0145(1)(e) and (2)(f), Fla. Stat., shall be 

filed no later than 15 days after the date of filing this application, as required by Fla. Admin. 

Code. R. 5 25-30.030. 

WHEREFORE, Applicant requests that this Commission approve the application for 

transfer of majority organizational control of CWS Communities LP d/b/a Palm Valley, holder of 

Certificate Nos. 277-W and 223- minole County, as set forth in this application. 

DATEDthis /w day 

Ruden, McClosky, Smith, Schuster 

215 S. Monroe St., Suite 815 
Tallahassee, Florida 32303 

& Russell, P.A. 

(850) 681-9027 

Attorneys for CWS Communities LP d/b/a 
Palm Valley 
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4 AGREEMENT AS TO TRANSFER OF 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMXSSION CERTIFICATED UTILITES 

This AGREEMENT AS TO TRANSFER OF FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
_ _  -CERTIFICATED UTILmIES (this “Agreement”), is dated as of August 2,200 1 , by and among Chateau 

Communities, Inc., a Maryland corporation (c‘Chateau”), having an office at 6160 S. Syracuse Way, 
Greenwood Village, Colorado 801 11 , CP Limited Partnership, a Maryland limited partnership (“Chateau 
OP”), having an office at c/o Chateau Communities, hc., 6160 S. Syracuse Way, Greenwood Village, 
Colorado 80 1 1 1 and Security Capital Manufactured Housing Incorporated, a Delaware corporation 
(“Housing”), having an office at 125 Lincoln Avenue, Santa Fey New Mexico 87501, whereby the parties 
agree as follows: 

WITNESSETH: 

A. WHEREAS, Chateau, Chateau OP, Housing, CWS Communities Trust, CWS Communities LP 
(“CWS OP”) and certain merger subsidiaries named therein are parties to that certain Agreement and 
Plan of Merger dated as of June 6,2001 (together with related agreements, the “Merger Agreement”). 
Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, CWS OP will be acquired through merger by and 
become a wholly owned subsidiary of Chateau OP; 

B. WHEREAS, Section 367.071 (I), Fla. Stat. (2000), provides that no utility shall sell, assign, or 
transfer its certificate of authorization, facilities or any portion thereof, or majority organizational 
control (hereinafter referred to as “Transfer”) without determination and approval of the Florida 
Public Service Commission (“FPSC”) that said Transfer is in the public interest and that the buyer, 
assignee, or transferee will fulfill the commitments, obligations, and representations of the utility; but 
that a Transfer may occur prior to FPSC approval if said Transfer is made contingent upon FPSC 
approval; 

C. WHEREAS, CWS OP is the holder of the following FPSC certificates of authorization (each a 
‘‘Certificated Utility” and collectively, the “Certificated Utilities”): 

Water certificate No. 5 18-W in Lake County, Florida, providing water service to 
the Haselton Village Mobile Home Park. 

Water certificate No. 277-W and wastewater certificate No. 223-5 in Seminole 
County, Florida, providing service as CWS Communities LP d/b/a Palm Valley 
to, inter alia, Palm Valley Mobile Home Park. 

Water certificate No. 525-W and wastewater certificate 454-S in Highlands 
County, Florida, providing water and wastewater service as CWS Comrnunities 
LP d/b/a Crystal Lake Club to Crystal Lake Mobile Home Park. 

a. 

b. 

C. 

D. WHEREAS, the majority organizational control of CWS OP will change on the date hereof in 
accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement; and 

E. WHEREAS, the parties desire to Transfer the Certificated Utilities prior to FPSC approval consistent 
with the provisions of 6 367.071(1), Fla. Stat. (2000). 

- Attachment A - NYB 1268534.2 



I NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and undertakings contained herein, 
subject to and on the terms and conditions herein set forth, and in recognition of the requirements of 6 
367.07 1( l), Fla. Stat. (2000), and the authority of the FPSC, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

The Transfer of CWS OP, holder of the Certificated Utilities, is made contingent upon FPSC 
approval. 

This Agreement has no effect upon the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Merger 
Agreement, except and solely as it pertains to the stock transfer related to the Certificated Utilities. 

If one or more applications for Transfer are not approved by the FPSC, then (i) only the stock transfer 
relating directly to the particular Certificated Utility at issue shall be affected; and (ii) until such 
application or applications for Transfer are approved, Housing shaf 1 use commercially reasonable 
efforts to assist Chateau and/or Chateau OP in securing the approval of the FPSC to the Transfer. 

p h e  remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank] 
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WJTNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been signed by a duly authorized officer and on behalf of 
each of the parties hereto as of the date first written above. 

C J & 4 T E A U Z T I E S Y  INC., 
. a ‘Maryland 

B 
Name: C B d  
Title: 6 . ?hkS G e d 4 f - e  

CP LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, 
a Maryland limited partnership 

SECURITY CAPITAL MANUFACTURED 

a 

€3 

HOUSING INCORPORATED, 

N-:~&CL*YUDwL 

CJSn-c 
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Corn mu n ityplus 

“Gus“, the Communityplus mascot, embodies 
the Chateau Communities commitment to service 
and partnership. 

Create valued resident relationships by providing a 
welcoming environment, quality products and resident 
services in attractive settings, i n  partnership with our 
residents, employees, and shareholders. 

Chateau Communities is one of the largest owner/ 
operators of mariLtfactured home communities in the U.S. 
Its portfolio consists of 1G6 communities, with an aggregate 
of approximately 52,300 residential Izomesites and I ,400 
park inodeURV sites. In addition, Chateau manages 44 
nianufactured home curmiunities with approximately 9,200 
residential homesites. The Compa~ny owns or has options 
on 1 2 greenfie Id develop rrietz t co nim itni t ies co rnpr is ing 
approxiinately 800 finished sites and approximately 4,500 
sites for future development. The Company serves apyroxi- 
vliaiely 130,000 residents in 34 states. 

Chateau has been an iniiovntov in acquiring, developing, 
and managing nianuJnctured home, landlease coniniuniiies 
for more than thirty years. It has  been frequently honored 
by its industry peers for leadership arid quality. Zn 1999, the 
National Manu$actured Housing Congress named the Company 
“National Manufactured Home Corizmmity Operator of the 
Year”. This was the seventh coiisecutive year Chateau received 
this pres t igio us aw a rd, a 11 unprecedented ac hi eve nie 11 t. 

The Conipany has implemented a strategic plan that 
focuses on the goal of 200,000 vulued resident relationships 
by 2002. 

1 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

2 TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS 

4 MANAGEMENT PL i J 5  

6 COMMUNITY PLUS 

8 GROWTH PL.I.tS 

18 NEIGHBORS PI. IJS 

1.2 DIVERSIFICATION PLU5 

J 3 FACTS I‘X.X.I5 

14 RElT FINANCIAL ANALYSTS 

X ‘i EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

1 L FINANCIAL REVIEW 







F I N A N C I A L  H I G H L I G H T S  

Dollars in thousands except per share data 2000 

Revenues 
- Funds from operations 

Income before minority interests 
Net income 
Per share information: 

Net income -basic 
Net income - diluted 
Funds from operations - diluted 
DividencVdistribu tion per common 

share/OP Unit outstanding ., 
Weighted average common 

Weighted average common shares and 

Rental property, before 

Total assets 
Total sit& at year-end 
Year-end occupied sites 

shares outstanding 

OP Units outstanding 

accumulated depreciation 

1 

$ 204,765 
$ 85,917 
$ 48,722 
$ 37,786 

$ 1.33 

$ 2.67 

$ ' 2.06 

,28,480 

32,13C 

$ 1,091,451 
$ 1,017,864 

52,347 
47,67€ 

$ 1.32 

1999 

$ 189,363 
$ 77,629 
$ 44,962 
$ 34,626 

$ 1.23 
$ 1.23 
$ 2.45 

$ 1.94 

28,135 

3 1,582 

$ 1,055,450 
$ 981,673 
' 5 1,659 
. 47,383 

1998 

6 173,130 
$ 69,392 
$ 34,486 
$ 26,801 

$ 0.98 
$ 0.97 
$ 2.23 

$ 1.82 

27,282 

30,779 

$ 1,026,509 
$ 959,194 

51,101 
47,192 

1997 

55,962 
24,688 
21,702 

0.92 
0.91 
2.06 

1.72 

23,688 

26,947 

$ 138,169 

$ 836,175 
$ 782,738 

43,800 
40,286 

1996 

67,384 
27,460 
16,100 
6,534 

1.09 
1 .OS 
1.84 

1.62 

6,022 

14,837 

$ 300,631 
$ 232,066 

20,279 
19,148 

TOTAL FUNDS FROM TOTAL DlVI DEN D 
R E V E N U E S  0 PE RAT1 0 N S S l T E S  GROWTH 
(in millions) (in millions) [in thousands) (per sharelop unit) 

886 41 52 52 

$138 
c >  ,- 

8173 

$67 

$189 

$205 

927 

069 

$56 

$78 

20 

44 
$1.72 

$1.62 

$1.94 
$1.82 

02.06 

96 97 98 99 00 96 97 98 99 00 96 97 98 99 00 96 97 98 99 00 



TO O U R  
S HA RE H 0 LD ERS 

Chateau Communities entered the mil- 
lennium with a clear mission and a united 
vision. Well into a transition of our fundamen- 
tal operating philosophy, we are approaching 
our business with a renewed, heightened sense 
of purpose. Chateau has broadened its role as 
industry leader and created value for share- 
holdersln the process. In 2000, the Company: 

:e Increased funds from operations (FFO) 
10.7% to $85.9 million 

:a Increased same-store net operating income 
5:1% to $119.9 million 

:a Placed more than $250 million of 
long-term debt 

:* Introduced Communityplus, the 
national brand for our commitment to 
service and partnership with residents 

The year was a difficult one €or many in the 
manufactured housing industry. Manufacturers 
continued to feel the effects of oversupply, 
curtailing production in order to reduce excess 
inventory. Finance companies exited the bnsi- 
ness or tightened their requirements, reducing 
the availability of credit for potential residents. 
Nevertheless, Chateau has continued to meet 
financial expectations and demonstrate our ability 
to grow revenue, maintain occupancy, control 
expenses and increase net operating income. 

We have maintained steady, predictable 
growth thanks to the hard work and dedication 
of our staff of professionals who are the best in 
the business. We have positioned Chateau for 
continued progress by looking toward the future. 

In 1999, we determined that we could 
best meet our overall comparfy goals by focus- 
ing on four long-term, strategic objectives. 
In 2000, Chateau made tremendous strides 
toward accomplishing each of them. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: 

ATTRACT AND RETAIN LOYAL RESIDENTS 

Chateau made industry history in 2000 with its 
introduction of a national customer service commitment. 
Like many of the most astute US. corporations, Chateau 
has long understood that our relationship with customers 
is one of the keys to continued growth and prosperity. This 
prqgressive point of view demands a broader perspective 
than the real estate industry’s traditional concentration 
on property assets. Our partnership with residents is an 
increasingly valuable asset. At the same time, having a 
productive relationship means we must shift residents’ defi- 
nition of the Company from “landlord” to “partner.’’ 

Comprehensive customer surveys revealed that our 
greatest opportunity to affect resident perceptions lay in the 
area of responsiveness. In August, the Company introduced 
“4/24 Service,’’ a national commitment to customer service. 
Under the policy, ariy concern or complaint from a resident 
is acknowledged and addressed within four hours. Within 
24 hours, community management advises the resident of 
either the resolution or the plan of action being undertaken 
to resolve the issue. In addition, we have reviewed our - 

availability to provide these needed services and have 
modified office hours across the Company so we can 
be available when our customer - the resident - needs us. 

The 4/24 Service initiative has begun to make an 
impact in our communities, and is just the first of many 
steps we are taking to strengthen the relationship between 
our residents and community managers. Customer service 
training and more automated business processes are among- 
the tools we have introduced to support the greater demands 
being placed on community staff. Chateau’s investment in a 
mutually beneficial partnership with residents is the 
essence of the Company’s future. 

, 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: 
ATTRACT, HIRE AND RETAIN QUALITY EMPLOYEES 

employee turnover by 100 percent in 2000. Today’s busi- 
ness environment demands new skills, greater professional- 
ism and more flexibility from individual contributors than 
ever before. At Chateau, we know that our future rests in 
the capable hands of team members across the U.S. A care- 
fully planned, disciplined approach is essential to finding - 
and keeping - the right people for the increasingly demand- 
ing positions our strategic plan requires. 

Employee turnover is a costly problem not only in 
dollars, but also in the lack of continuity and potential 
disruption of service to our cust9mers. We conducted our 
first survey of employee satisfaction in 1999 and were 
pleased to learn that team members enjoyed their jobs. The. 
Company’s success was important to them. 

Based in part on these survey results, we worked in 
2000 to address employee concerns about benefits, potential 
for advancement, and training. At the same time, we devel- 
oped more rigorous recruitment and hiring practices and 
initiated company-wide training programs in customer I 

The Company exceeded it5 tgrget reduction in 



In 2000, we launched Chateau's brand for our 

commitment to service and partnership. 

Our 4/24 Service initiative was the first 
management, effective communication, and conflict resolu- 
tion. Our Comniunityplus 4/24 Service commitment extends 
to Chateau team members' support of each other. These 
efforts helped us reduce turnover by ten percent in 2000 - 
double the five percent improvement we set out to achieve. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE: 

ENHANCE, EXPAND AND REDEFINE OUR CORE BUSINESS 

The introduction of Communityplus added a high- 
potential revenue stream for Chateau. Although rental 
income will always represent the most significant portion 
of our revenues and earnings, i t  became increasingly evident 
that we must expand our direction and develop new ways 
to serve our customer base and create value. By leveraging 
our size and buylng power to offer our residents services 
and products they already used or would need, we believed 
we could pass on much of our savings EO residents and add 
value to their relationship with Chateau. Tn addition, we 
could package those same services to provide value for others 
in our industry through affiliate relationships. In our goal 
to achieve 200,000 valued resident relationships by the year 
2002, we realized that growing through acquisition has 
become increasingly difficult. Building relationships with 
other community operators and their residents through 
access to our programs and services will provide ongoing 
earnings for Chateau. Ultimately, we believe these relation- 
ships will also give us the first opportunity to acquire the 
real estate itself. 

In 2000, we launched Chateau's brand for our commit- 
ment to service and partnership. Our 4/24 Service initiative 
was the first step in introducing Communityplus, followed 
by the phased rollout of Buymg Power, a menu of quality 
products and services available to residents. This year, we 
also offered the Buying Power program to other manufac- 
tured home community operators, a move that thus far has 
given Chateau marketing access to more than 6,000 affiliate 
homesites. You will learn more about Communityplus on the 
following pages. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTtVE: 

IMPROVE AND STREAMLINE WORK PROCESSES 

Chateau enthusiastically embraced technology this 
year, moving toward greater efficiency at all levels of the 
organization. Individual community managers, region, 
division, and corporate staff are now connected electroni- 
cally, allowing nearly instant communication. Thanks to a 
new enterprise-wide software system, our financial and 
operations management functions can be improved tremen- 
dously. Zntroduction of a centralized lockbox for receiving 

step in introducing 

and processing monthly resident payments 
will allow better controls as well as provide 
additional opportunities for our on-site team 
members to serve our customers better. 

We are pleased to report our strategic plan 
has been instrumental in Chateau's continuing 
prosperity and significant growth, This new 
company direction will provide the long-term 
benefits that are essential to Chateau's future 
success. We also value our historic business 
philosophy, the consistency and quality of our 
cash flow, and the long-term predictability of 
both earnings and dividends. Our future 
vision ensures the continuation of our thirty- 
year history of success by enhancing proven 
successful practices, as well as executing new 
initiatives we believe will serve us well into 
the next several years. 

By planning for the future, relylng on our 
extraordinary colleagues, and creating new 
opportunities and new partnerships, Chateau 
Communities will continue to grow and lead. 

JOHN A. BOLL 
Chairman of the Board of Directors 

/ 

4 
GARY P. McDANlEL 
Chief Executive Officer 

C.G. "JEFF" KELLOGG 
President 
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Popular wisdom holds that “it takes a heap of living to 
make a house a home.” At Chateau, we know it  takes a lot 
of work and collaboration to transform a property into a 
community. The Company has been a leader in community 
management since its inception, with Chateau executives 
in steady demand as expert speakers at industry seminars 
and conferences. In 2000, this leadership role reached a 
new level when CEO Gary McDani’el was named Chairman 
of the Manufactured Housing Institute (“MHI”), the indus- 
try’s national trade association. Mr. McDaniel’s appointment 
marks the first time a community operator has held the 
top position at MHl. 

The basics of community management - resident 
relations, community appearance, budget control, marketing, 
and collections - are skillfully handled at Chateau commu- 
nities. “Our community managers are exceptional,” says 
Chateau President Jeff Kellogg. “They’re the stewards of the 
company’s most valuable assets - property and relationships - 
and they take that responsibility to the highest level.” 
At Norton Shores, in Muskegon, Michigan, Community 
Managers Joe and Rita Holub have been serving their 
neighbors for 14 years. They keep the community in 
impeccable condition, maintaining roads, landscaping, ten- 
nis court, playground and picnic areas, and taking special 
pride in the newly remodeled community center with 
exercise room. They also offer a host of activities and special 
events for residents, celebrating every holiday from Valentine’s 
Day to Christmas with a party, as well as hosting health 
clinics. vard sales. and award Droerams to foster local wide. 

. 

. 

Joe and Rita routinely go the extra mile for 
their community. In response to a devastating 
“straight line” windstorm in 1998, they created 
an emergency action vehicle, equipped with 
portable generator, first aid gear, communica- 
tions equipment and other items that prove 
invaluable in crisis situations. 

spirit of partnership earned Norton Shores 
the Manufactured Housing Institute’s prized 
“First in Excellence” award. To qualify for 
the recognition, Joe completed an Accredited 
Community Manager program. The communi- 
ty underwent rigorous review by an MHI 
property inspection firm, and residents were 
surveyed by MHI to determine their level of 
satisfaction with community appearance, safe- 
ty, facilities, services, and management. 

Joe and Rita’s dedication makes Norton 
Shores a happy home for Kim and Garth - 
Garceau. Mrs. Garceau and-her son, Brian, have 
lived there since 1984; she and her husband’ 
met when he moved in across the street in 
1993. Her parents also live in Norton Shores. 
The couple especially enjois the monthly - 
community potlucks and informational pro- 
grams. “We have good, nice neighbors, and we 
like the quiet neighborhood,” says Mrs. Garceau. 

Shirley Bailey, a Norton Shores resident 
for eight years, also values the Holubs’ efforts. 
Widowed, and an avid dancer, Shirley enjoys 
the variety of community activities. Most 
of all, she says, “this is a nice community I 
feel safe.” 

The quality of life, attention to detail, and 



The essence of Chateau’s new business 
strategy is embodied in a helpful little cartoon 
character (pictured on inside front cover) who 
represents the Company’s Cminiunityplus 
brand. The Communityplus mascot, named 
“Gus” by a Chateau team member, appears 
prominently on promotional materials in all 
Chateau communities. The brand and the char- 
acter stand for the Company’s commitment to 
partnership with customers, team members, 
and affiliated companies. 

Communityplus was introduced in the 
summer of 2000 with the announcement of 
Chateau’s 4/24 Service guarantee. The program 
promises residents a response to their qirestions 
within four hours, and a solution or plan of 
action within 24 hours. just months after 
inception, the commitment has already strength- 
ened the relationship between community 
managers and residents, and between 
the Company and its stakeholders, including 
homeowner associations. 

Next was the launch of Comntunityplus Buying Power, 
a suite of products and services from respected national 
vendors that provides added value for community residents. 
Response to initial offers has been impressive. Addressing 
residents interest in health, thrift, pride, convenience, and 
peace of mind, the Buying Power program gives Chateau 
residents the opportunity to purchase tailored services from 
Brinks Home Security, Orkm, InTouch companion monitor- 
ing, New Benefits health savings card, and Style Crest home 
improvement products, among others. As a broker of these 
products, the Company draws a portion of sales revenues. 

“Access to Buymg Power adds value for Chateau resi- 
dents,” says Senior VP of New Business John Fernie. “We 
have leveraged the Company’s national presence for the 
benefit of our customers. That’s good news for the resident, 
and good news for Chateau, since it gives us an additional 
revenue stream.” The Company also draws revenue from 
national agreements for cable television service and trash 
collection, and is evaluating a variety of other national 
property-based services. 

One of the most exciting Cc”unitypZus projects 
is underway in over-55 community Colony. Cove, located 
in Ellenton, Florida. Construction of an assisted living 
center will begin in 2001. Chateau is leasing property to an 
experienced third-party developer/operator for the center, 
which already has a waiting list of Colony Cove residents 
who look forward to staylng near their friends and familiar 
surroundings when they need more day-to-day help. 

Following on the heels of 4/24 Service and Buymg 
Power, Chateau introduced its Communityplus affiliate 
program to other companies in the manufactured housing 
industry in the fall. The partnership offer has been received 
enthusiastically by smaller community operators. By year- 
end 2000, the Company had added more than 12,000 new 
resident relationships through affiliate agreements, and had 
several more discussions underway. 

“We see both short- and long-term benefits from the 
affiliate program” says Executive VP Rees Davis. “Obviously, 
there are immediate revenue opportunities. Over time, we 
believe the relationships we’re building through Conimunity- 
plus will provide great acquisition opportunities.” 
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G R O W T H  PLUS 

Chateau seizes every opportunity to advance its own 
reputation and the image of manufactured housing. The 
development of Chateau at Onion Creek, a year-old com- 
munity in Austin, Texas is a case in point. 

Austin’s highly educated population and booming 
economy represented a high-potential market with unique 
challenges. The Onion Creek area was rich in the wooded, 
rolling terrain that appeals to potential homeowners. Working 
collaboratively with Austin municipal authorities and a 
local partner, Chateau designed a revolutionary community, 
preserving the natural beauty of the area and offering 
lifestyle amenities that draw residents seeking affordable, 
esthetically satisfymg housing options in a hot market. 

Larry and Sonia Newman and their 10-year-old son, 
Hazael, were one of the first families to move in to Onion 
Creek in April 2000. When Mr. Newman’s job as a purchaser 
with a business-to-business Internet company brought the 
family to Austin, they rented an apartment and began their 
house hunt. “We took our time searching, because we wanted 
a good home in a neighborhood w t h  a good school,” he 
says. Chateau at Onion Creek offered everything they were 
looking for, and more. In addition to the pool, playground, 
community park, and attractive surroundings, the secret 
ingredient in Onion Creek is community managers Rob 
Robertson and Carolyn Keeling. “Rob and Carolyn always 
respond to our needs,” says Mr. Newman. “They’re great 
managers. I’ve recommended Onion Creek to several people 
at work. It’s hard to describe what a great community this is 
- 1 think people need to come here and see it for themselves.” 

Rob and Carolyn take tremendous pride in the com- 
munity they oversee. “It’s very exciting to see a community 
grow from the ground up,” says Carolyn. “We’re so excited 
to be working with Chateau. This company is dedicated 
to doing things right.” The couple keeps an eagle eye 
on Onion Creek, touring the neighborhood regularly. They 
mfnrrp thp rnmmiinitv rnvpnantc and art=- ~ P P T I ~ X T  

committed to preserving residents’ quality 
of life. Carolyn even has contractors trained 
to remove their shoes before they enter resi- 
dents’ homes. 

ager QuentinJordan moved to Onion Creek 
in the fall of 2000. They, too, are impressed 
with their new community. “Housing costs are 
outrageous in Austin,” says Mr. Jordan. “1 
looked at apartments, but knew I would be 
throwing my money away. I liked Onion Creek 
right away. 1 knew this was a good choice.” 

, “1 was a harder sell,” says Ms, Bryand. “I 
was skeptical when Quentin first told me about 
Onion Creek, but after I came and looked 
around, I was pleasantly surprised. This com- 
munity is beautiful. Meticulous landscaping, 
gates for security, and strict covenants that are 
enforced. The c h b  house-and gym were big 
for me - I work out regularly, so having the 
new gym on-site is very convenient.” 

Community Managers Rob and Carolyn 
are becoming accustomed to Onion Creek 
making a splash. In June, the local daily news- 
paper, the Austin American-Statesman, sent a 
reporter to live in the community for a week 
as part of the paper’s Sunday “How We Live” 
series. A lengthy - and glowing - article was 
the result. Since then, Chateau at Onion’Creek 
has been profiled in real estate industry publi- 
cations and presentations. 

Chateau President Jeff Kellogg is justifiably 
proud of the project. “In developing Onion 
Creek, we stuck to our policy of building a 
step above the market,” he says. “We did our 
homework and used a lot of creativity. The 
result is a community that represents the 
future of manufactured housing.” 

Publicist Darlene Bryand and office man- 



NEtGHRORS PLUS 

Nothing brings neighbors together more 
than taking action in the service of a worthy 
cause. Chateau’s long-standing support of the 
March of Dimes unites employees and residents 
across the country to fight birth defects. It’s a 
commitment that brings out the best in every- 
one involved. 

The Company has supported March of 
Dimes since 1989, encouraging each office to 
develop its own fund raising programs. From 
the corporate office in Denver, where the staff 
members display their artistic side at a holiday 
craft fair and pay for the privilege of wearing 
blue jeans on Fridays, to divisional offices’ 
award-winning annual participation in the 
March of Dimes national WalkAmerica event, 
to individual communities, where the variety 
of fund-raising events is as diverse as the 
communi ties themselves, everyone at Chateau 
gets into the neighborly spirit. 

community in Massachusetts, March of Dimes 
activities are a source of pride. Catherine 
Tenikos, a retired X-ray technician who has 
lived at Leisurewoods for twelve years, chairs 
the 14-member community March of Dimes 
committee. “Our most successful fundraiser is 
our “Chowder and Clam Bake” night - we 
raised over $700 at our last dinner. Considering 

At Leisurewoods at Tauhton, an over-55 

this is a senior community that’s a lot of money to raise! It’s 
a huge success - everyone works very hard. Residents here 
are of the age that they knew all about polio. We under- 
stand the effects and want to support the cause.” 

March of Dimes activities have also engaged Ted and 
Jan Labrecque, who moved to Leisurewoods in 1999 in 
pursuit of a simpler lifestyle. “With a big house, big yard 
and pool, we had no leisure time. All our free time was 
spent maintaining everything,” says Mr. Labrecque. Now, 
he says, their time is spent on more rewarding pursuits. 
They read more, dine out, and attend community activities. 
Mrs. Labrecque is an active member of the March of Dimes 
committee. “We have made great friends here,” she says. 

Community Manager Nancy Fallon provides support 
and guidance for resident fund-raising activities, and is a 
favorite among the neighbors. “Nancy is fair and square 
with everybody,” says Ms. Tenikos. A high point for Nancy, 
and for Leisurewoods at Taunton, was being honored at 
March of Dimes’ regional Volunteer Leadership Celebration 
in January 2001. _The community received a gold medal 
from Olympic athlete Bruce Jenner in recognition of the 
thousands of dollars they have raised. “This community of 
retirees is dedicated and enthusiastic,’’ Jenner noted. 

Chair of the March of Dimes Colorado Chapter Board of 
Directors believes the Company’s support of the charity 
maximizes resources. “By focwing our charitable commit- 
ments instead of taking a less targeted approach, Chateau 
makes a big impact in the communities where we do busi- 
ness. Since 1989, the corporation, team members, residents 
and friends have contributed more than $850,000 to 
March of Dimes. In fiscal year 2001 alone, we’re aiming 
for $225,000. That’s a goal that brings us all together, an 
achievement everyone can be proud of.” 

Chateau Chief Financial Officer Tamara Fischer, Vice 
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Chateau March of Dimes supporters Jon Hill, Grady Hunt and Tamara Fischel; and March of Dimes 
Colorado Chapter Executwe Director, Shelley Goadchild. 
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FACTS PLUS US E Ftd L t N FOR MAT DO N 
ABOUT MANUFACTURED HOUSING 

I 

AFFORDABILITY PLUS: MANUFACTURED HOME COMMUNITIES 

As the popularity of manufactured housing continues 
to grow, the manufactured home community continues to 
provide an affordable, attractive alternative for homebuyers. 
In land-lease communities like those owned and managed 
by Chateau Communities, the homeowner purchases a 
home, places it in the community, and leases the land’from 
the community, The infrastructure, including amenities, 
utility hookups, private yards, and parking, is already 
in place. 

LIFESTYLE PLUS: APPEAL FOR HOMEOWNERS - 

Homeowners are attracted to the amenities included 
with their homesite lease. Clubhouses, swimming pools, 
tennis courts, golf courses, marinas, and daycare facilities 
are some of the options available to residents of manufac- 
tured home communities. The community-oriented 
lifestyle includes planned activities, social gatherings, and 
sporting events. Homeowners of all ages and income levels 
find these communities provide an affordable, attractive, 
comfortabIe environment. 

INVESTMENT PLUS: APPEAL FOR INVESTORS 

Manufactured home communities offer investors stable 
income and long-term growth potential. Barriers to entry 
make it unlikely that markets will be overbuilt by competi- 
tors. Chateau anticipates 8-10 percent growth in FFO 
per share per year, while generating stable, increasing divi- 
dends to its shareholders and partners. 

More than 19 million people live full-time in 
manufactured housing. 1 

The average head of household in A manujuc- 
tured home is 53 years old. The majority are 
employed fulLtime.2 

Average-household sire in manufactured 
housing is 2.4 persons..’ 

22% of manufactured housing residents live 
in their homes for at least twenty years. 

A17 manufactured homes are built to federal 
HUD Code, with each home undergoing a 
rigorous inspection process before being 
certified and sold. 
In 2000, the Manufactured Housing 
Improvement Act was passed into law. The new 
law will benefit homeowners by providing a 
more timely method to update HUD standards. 

The majority of manufactured homes are 
never moved after they have been installed.3 

In 2000, one out of six new, single$amily 
housing starts were manufactured homes.4 

Sales of multisection homes continue to 
outpace single-section sales. In 2OOO,-7O. 1 
percent of total manufactured housing 
shipments were multisection.4 

The average sale price of a manufactured 
home was $43,600. The average cost ufa site- 
built home, excluding land, is $153,425.3 

DK Carol Meehs, Manufactured Home Life study, I998 

1999 Foremost study 

The Manufactured Housing Institute, 2000 

National Conference of States Building Codes and Standards 
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E X E C U T I V E  0 F F  ICERS 

John A Boll, 71, has been Chairman ofthe Board ofDirectors of 
the Company since its rnception in 1993. Pnor  to theformation of 
the Company, Mr Boll was the co-founder, partner and ChieJ 
Executive Oaicer of Chateau Estates, which was formed in I966 
He was inducted into the Manufactured Housing/ Recreational 
Vehicle Hall of Fame i n  1992 lo r  his outstanding contributions to 
the manufactured housing industrj Mr Boll was appointed by the 
Governor of the 5tate of Michigan to become thefirst Chainnan of 
the Michigan Mobile Home Commission, which is the pnncipal 
Michigan authority I-egulating manufactured housing, a position he 
heldfor SIX years. 

JCHN A. BOLL 

Gary I? McDaniel, 55, has been Chief ,Executive Officer and a 
director of the Company sincc Februaiy 1997 He served as thc 
Chairman oJ the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of 
ROC Communities, lnc. since I993 and had been a principal of 
ROC‘S predecessors since 1979 He has been active in the manufac- 
tured home industry since 1972 He is a Trustee of N’Tundm Trust. 
Mr McDaniel has been active in several state and national manu- 
factured home associations, including associations in Flonda and 
Colorado. In 1996, he was named “Industry Person ofthe Year” 
by the National Manufactured Housing Industry Association 
MI: McDaniel is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the 
Manufactured Housing Institute He is a graduate of the University 
of Wyoming and served a5 a Captain in the United States Air Force. 

GARY I? McDANlEL 

C.G ( ‘ J e r )  Kellogg, 57, has been President and a director of the 
Company since its inception, and was Chief Executive Oflicer of 
the Companyfrom its inception to February 1997. For the jvc  
years preceding theformation 01 the Company, Mr: Kellogg was 
President and Chief Operating Officer of Chateau Estates He is 
active in local and national industry associations, often in leader- 
ship positrons. Mr Kellogg I 5  a past President of the Michigan 
Manufactured Housing Association and is an active member of the 
Manujactured Housing Institute’s National Communities Council 
He is a graduate of Michigan Technological University with a B 5. 
in Civil Engineenng 

Tamara D 
Financial I 

formation 
employed 1 
Vice Chair 
Dimes. Sht 
a CPA and 

Fischel; 45, IS Executive Vice President and Chief 
C)Jicei; having served in these roles since the Company’s 
Pnor  tojoinmg the Company, Ms. Fischer was 

by Coopers & Lybrandfor eleven years Ms Fischer I S  

man of the Board of the Colorado Chapter of the March of 
: was appointed to the Board in April 1999. Ms Fischer is 
a graduate of Case Westem Reserve University 

Rees F Davis, ,k, 42, is Executive Vice President of Acquisitions, 
having served in such capacity since February 1997. He senled as 
Executive Vice President of Acquisitions and Sales for ROC from 
1993 to February 1997 Prior to that, MK Davis served as Vice 
President of Acquisitions and Sales and as directorfor ROCi prede- 
cessors since 1986 Mr Davis IS a two-term past officer of the 
Colorado Manufactured Housing Association. He 1s also an activt- 
member of The Manufactured Housing lnstitute M r  Davis is a 
graduate of Colorado State University 

C.G. (“JEFF”)  KELLOGG 

TAMARA D. FISCHER 
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Financial Review: SELECTED FlNANCLAL DATA 

The following table sets forth summary financial information of the Company for the periods and dates indicated. 

For the Year Ended December 31. 

In thousands, except per share data 2000 1999 1998 1997(’) 1996 

OPERATING DATA: 

Revenues 
Rental income I . $ 186,963 $ 177,789 $ 167,206 $ 134,801 $ 67,233 
Management fee, interest and 

other income 17,802 11,574 5,924 3,368 151 
Total revenues 204,765 189,363 173,130 138,169 67,384 

Property operating and administrative 75,723 73,062 67,699 56,053 26,870 
Depreciation and amortization 43,920 41,826 39,658 31,510 11,452 
Interest and related amortization 36,400 32,318 3 1,287 25,918 12,962 

Total expenses 156,043 147,206 138,644 113,481 5 1,284 

and minority interests 48,722 42,157 34,486 24,688 16,100 

Expenses - - 

lncome before net gain on sales of properties 

- - - Net gain on sales of properties - 2,805 
Income before minority interests 48,722 44,962 34,486 24,688 16,100 
Less income allocated to minority interests 

Preferred OP Units 6,094 6,094 4,249 - - 

Common OP Units 4,842 4,242 3,436 2,986 9,566 
Net income available to common shareholders $ 37,786 $ 34,626 $ 26,801 $ 21,702 $ 6,534 

Weighted average common shares outstanding 28,480 28,135 27,282 23,688 6,022 
Weighted average common shares -and 

OP Units outstanding 32,130 3 1,582 30,779 26,947 14,837’ 

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARElOP UNIT DATA: 

Net income - basic $ 1.33 $ 1.23 $ 0.98 $ 0.92 $ 1.09 
Net income - diluted $ 1.32 $ 1.23 $ 0.97 $ 0.91 $ 1.08 
Dividendddis tribu tions declared $ 2.06 $ 1.94 $ 1.82 $ 1.72 $ 1.62 
Tax status of dividends, return of 

capital portion $ 0.64 $ 0.60 $ 0.69 $ 0.62 $ 0.65 
, 

CASH FLOW DATA: 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ ,84,961 $ 77,464 $ 72,560 $ 54,545 $ 29,755 
Net cash used in investing activities $ (73,123) $ (56,777) $(167,089) $ (61,309) $ (29,518) 
Net cash provided by (used in) 

financing activities $ (12,087) $ (20,789) $ 80,069 $ 21,088 $ . (595) 

(1) _In February 1997, the Company completed the Merger wirh ROC 
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Financial Review: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

For the Year Ended December 31, 

In thousands, except per share data 2000 1999 1998 1997(’) 1996 

BALANCE SHEET DATA: 

Rental property, before 

Rental property, net of 

Total assets 
Total debt 
Minority interests in 

Shareholders’ equity 

accumulated depreciation 

accumulated depreciation 

Operating Partnership 

Dollars in thousands 

$ 1,091,451 !$ 1,055,450 $ 1,026,509 $ 836,175 $ 300,631 

$ 855,798 $ 863,435 $ 875,249 $ 723,861 $ 219,338 
$ 1,017,864 $ 981,673 $ 959,194 $ 782,738 $ 232,066 
$ 535,470 $ 452,556 $ 427,778 $ 387,015 $ 168,315 

$ 116,863 $ 121,142 $ 120,475 $ 35,272 $ 26,552 
$ 335,912 $ 361,820 $ 367,935 $ 322,966 $ 16,191 

Total properties (at end of period) 166 165 165 131 47 
Total sites (at end of period) ( 2 )  52,347 5 1,659 51,101 43,800 20,279 

47,466 47,181 45,882 38,053 18,889 Weighted average occupied sites 
Funds from operations ( 3 )  $ 85,917 $ 77,629 $ 69,392 $ . 55,962 $ 27,460 

(I) In February 199i, thc Company completed the Merger with ROC 
(2) Does no1 include 1.359 park model/RV sites, purchased in 1998 
(3) Fundsfrom operations (“FFO”) is defined by the National Associarion of Real Estate Investment Jnsts (WAREIT’’) as consolidated net income of the Company 

without giving effect t o  gains (or loses) from debt restructunng and safes olproperty and rental property depreciation and amortization Management behives that 
FFO IS an important and widely used memure of the operating performance of REITS, which provides a relevant basis for companson among REITS FFO (I) does 
riot represent cash flow from operations as dejned by generally accepted accounting principles, (71)  should nor be considered as an alternative to net income as a 
measure ojoperating performance or to cash flowsfrom operating, investing and financing activities, and (iii) is not an alternative to cashflows as a measure of 
liquidity FFO is calculated aslollows. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 

In t bo usa nds 2000 t 999 % 1998 1997 1996 

Income before kinority interests $ 48,722 $ 44,962 $ 34,486 $ 24,688 $ 16,100 
Less: 

Income allocated to preferred 
OP Units 6,094 6,094 4,249 - - 

43,289 41,161 38,962 30,867 11,360 
Amortization of intangibles - 405 446 407 - 
Gain on sales of properties - (2,805) (253) 

Plus: 
Depreciation of rental property 

- - 
Funds from operations $ 85,917 $ 77,629 $ 69,392 $ 55,962 $ 27,460 

NAREIT has revised its definition of FFO. The company adopted the new definition effective Januar’y 1, 2000. 
The new definition of FFO substantially eliminates the add-back of non-recurring items in the calculation of 
FFO. The application of this new definition decreased FFO in 1998 by $375,000, and had no effect on any 
other years reported. 



Financial Review: MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDlTlON AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

/ 

The following discussion should be read in con- 
junction with the consolidated financial statements 
and Notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual 
Report. Certain statements in this discussion consti- 
tute “forward-looking statements” within the meaning 
of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 
as amended. Such forward-looking statements may 

The Company provides property management 
services to ”Tandem Trust (“N’Tandem”) and other 
manufactured home community owners, with an 
aggregate of 9,200 homesites. In addition, the Company 
owns approximately ten percent of ”Tandem’s out- 
standing equity, has made loans to ”Tandem, and 
provides advisory services to ”Tandem. 

involve the Company’s plans, objectives and expecta- 
tions, which are dependent upon a numbe? of factors, 
including site expansions, acquisitions, development 
and other new business initiatives which are all 
subject to a number of contingency factors such as 
the effects of national and local-economic conditions, 
changes in interest rates, supply and demand for 
affordable housing and the condition of the capital 
markets that may prevent the Company from achiev- 

Company growth since the beginning of 
1998 can be attributed to community acquisitions, 
increased operating performance at existing commu- 
nities, community expansions, and new community 
development. During 1998, the Company acquired 
34 communities in four separate portfolio acquisi- 
tions, containing an aggregate of 7,045 manufaciured 
homesites and 1,359 park modeVRV sites. During 
1999 and 2000, the Company acquired two commun- -~ - 

ing its objectives. 

OVE RVI E W 

ities each year, containing a total of 1,034 sites 
(624 sites in 1999 and 410 sites in 2000). 

to qualify as a RElT under the Internal Revenue Code 

income taxes on its earnings to the extent that such 
earnings are distributed to 

The Company conducts substantially all of 
its activities through CP Limited Partnership 
(the “Operating Partnership,’) in which it owned a 
combined 89 percent general partner interest as of 
December 3 1 ’I 2000. 

Since its organization, the Company has elected The Company is one of the largest owner/ 
managers of manufactured home communities in 

factured home sites to its portfolio over the three- 
year period ended December 31, 2000. At the end of 
this period, the Company’s portfolio comprised 166 
manufactured home communities containing 52,347 
manufactured homesites and 1,359 park modeVRV 
sites, located in 28’ states. 

the United States. The Company added 8,500 manu- and thus does not generally Pay ‘OrPorate 

HISTORICAL RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

CO?Jlpa~SOn of the year elided December 31, 2000 to the year ended December 31, 1999 

years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999. The Company considers all communities owned by the Company as 
of January 1, 1999 as the “Core 1999 Portfolio.” 

The following table summarizes certain information relative to the Company’s properties, as of and for the 

Core 1999 Portfolio Total 
\ Dollars in thousands, except per  site 2000 1999 2000 1999 

~ 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 

Number of communities 
Total manufactured homesites 
Occupied sites 
Occupancy % 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 

Rental income 
Property operating expenses 
Net operating income 
Weighted average monthly rent per site 

161 
5 1,325 
46,912 
9 1.4% 

$ 184,438 
$ 64,557 
$ 119,881 
!5 316 

161 
5 1,042 
46,847 
91.8% 

$ 176,872 
$ 62,770 
$ 114,102 
$ 302 

166 
52,347 
47,678 
91.1% 

$ 186,963 
$ 65,275 
$ 121,688 
$ 316 

165 
51,659 
47,383 
91.7% 

$ 177,789 
$ 63,181 
$ 114,608 
$ 302 



Financial Review: MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPEWTIONS 

For the year ended December 31, 2000, income 
before minority interests was $48,722,000, an increase 
of $3,760,000 from the year ended December 31, 
1999. The increase was due primarily to increased net 
operating income from the Core 1999 Portfolio and 
acquisitions. The increase in net operating income , 

from the Company's Core 1999 Portfolio was due to 
increased occupancy and rental increases partially 
offset by general operating expense increases. Rental 
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2000 was 
$186,963,000, an increase of $9,174,000 from 1999. 
Approximately 17 percent of the increase was due to 
acquisitions, net of dispositions, and 83 percent was 
due to rental increases and occupancy gains in the 
Company's Core 1999 Portfolio. 

Weighted average occupancy for the year ended 
December 31, 2000 was 47,466 sites compared with 
47,181 sites for the same period in 1999. The occu- 
pancy rate for the total portfolio was 91.1 percent 
on 52,347 sites as of December 31, 2000, compared 
to 9 1.7 percent on 5 1,659 sites as of December 3 1, 
1999. The occupancy rate on the stabilized portfolio 
(communities where the Company does not have or 
has not recently had, expansion of the community) 
was 92.5 percent as of December 31, .2000. The 
Company also added 275 available sites to its port- 
folio through expansion of its communities. On a 
per-site basis, weighted monthly Tental revenue for 
the year ended December 31, 2000 was $316 com- 
pared with $302 for the same period in 1999. 

Interest income primarily includes interest 
on notes receivable and advances to affiliates. 
The increase of $3,998,000 for the year ended 
December 31, 2000 from the same period in 1999 
is due primarily to increased interest income from 
Cbmpany-funded development projects, increased 
lending activity, as well as an increase in interest rates. 

Management fee and other income primarily 
includes management fee and transaction fee income 
for the management of 44 manufactured home 
communities and equity earnings from CSI. Included 
in this amount is approximately $3.2 million of 
acquisition and transaction fees due to "Tandem's 
acquisitions activity in 2000. Also included in man- 
agement fee and other income is approximately $2.1 

million of management and advisory fees from the 
"Tandem properties. The Company expects to con- 
tinue to earn management, advisory and other fees 
from "Tandem in 2001, and estimates the recurring 
component of revenues from "Tandem and its prop- 
'erties to stabilize. 

Property operating and maintenance expense 
for the year ended December 3 1 , 2000 increased by 
$1,343,000 or 2.7 percent from the prior year. The 
majority of the increase was due to operating expense 
increases in the Company's Core 1999 Portfolio, and 
to a lesser extent, acquisitions. On a per site basis, 
monthly weighted average property operating and 
maintenance expense increased to $91.03 per site, 
or 2.0 percent. 

2000 increased by $751,000 OT 5.9 percent from the 
year ended December 31, 1999. The increase is due 
primarily to acquisi tions , expansions of communities, 
and increases in property tax rates. On a per site 
basis, monthly weighted average real estate taxes 
were $23.57 in 2000 compared to $22.39 in 1999, 
an increase of 5.3 percent. Real estate taxes may 
increase or decrease due to inflation, expansions and 
improvements of communities, as well as changes 
in taxation in the tax jurisdictions in which the 
Company operates. 

Administrative expense in 2000 was 5.1 percent 
of total revenues as compared to 5.2 percent in 1999. 

Interest and related amortization costs increased 
for the year ended December 31,2000 by $4,082,000, 
as compared with the year ended December 31, 1999. 
The increase is attributed primarily to the indebted- 
ness incurred to finance acquisitions, development, 
and lending activities. Interest expense as a percentage 
of average debt outstanding decreased to approxi- 
mately 7.3 percent in 2000 from 7.4 percent in 1999. 

Depreciation expense for the year ended 
December 3 1 , 2000 increased $2,094,000 from 
the.same period a year ago. The increase is directly 
attributed to acquisitions, expansions, and additions. 
Depreciation expense as  a percentage of average 
depreciable rental property in 2000 remained 
xela tively unchanged from 1999. 

Real estate taxes for the year ended December 31, 

' 

. 
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Comparison of the year ended December 31, I999 to the year ended December 31, 1998 

years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998. The Company considers all Communities owned by the Company 
as of January 1, 1998 as the “Core 1998 Portfolio.” 

The following table summarizes certain information relative to the Company’s properties, as of and for the 

Core 1998 Portfolio Total 

Dollars in thousands, except per  site 1999 1998 1999 1998 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 

Number of communities 
Total manufactured homesites 
Occupied sites 
Occupancy % 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 

Rental income 
Property operating expenses 
Net operating income * 

145 145 
46,235 45,836 
42,418 42,374 
91.7% 92.4% 

Weighted average monthly rent per site $ 

$ 162,115 $ 154,712 
$ 57,971 $ 55,122 
3 104,144 $ 99,590 

For the year ended December 31, 1999, income 
before minority interests was $44,962,000, an increase 
of $10,476,000 from the year ended December 31, 
1998. The increase was due primarily to acquisitions 
and increased net operating income from the Core 
1998 Portfolio. The increase in net operating income 
from the Company’s Core 1998 Portfolio was due to 
increased occupancy and rental increases partially 
offset by general operating expense increases. Rental 
revenue for the year ended December 31, 1999 was 
$177,789,000, an increase of $10,583,000 from 1998. 
Approximately 30 percent of the increase was due to 
acquisitions, net of dispositions, and 70 percent was 
due to rental increases and occupancy gains in the 
Company’s Core 1998 Portfolio. 

December 31, 1999 was 47,181 sites compared 
with 45,882 sites for the same period in 1998. The 
Company also added 525 available sites to its port- 
folio through the expansion of its communities. 
The occupancy rate for the total portfolio was 91.7 
percent on 51,659 sites as of December 31, 1999, 
compared to 92.4 percent on 51,101 sites as of 
December 31, 1998. The occupancy rate on the stabi- 
lized portfolio was 93.2 percent as of December 31, 
1999. On a per site basis, weighted average monthly 
rental revenue for the year ended December 3 1 , 1999 
was $302 compared with $292 for the same period 
in 1998. For the Company’s Core 1998 Portfolio, 
on a per site basis, weighted average monthly rental 
revenue for the year ended December 3 1, 1999 was 
$307 compared with $295 for the same period in 
1998, an increase of 4.0 percent. 

notes receivable and advances to joint ventures affili- 
ates. The increase of $3,115,000 for the year ended 
December 3 1 , 1999 from the same period in 1998 

Weighted average occupancy for the year ended 

’ . Interest income primarily includes intereg on 

165 
5 1,659 
47,383 . 
91.7% 

$ 177,789 
$ 63,181 
$ 114,608 

165 
51,101 
47,192 
92.4% 

$ 167,206 
$ *  59,345 
$ 107,861 

307 $ 295 $ 302 $ 292 

is due primarily to increased interest income from 
Company-funded developmeq projects, as well as 
increases in interest rates. 

Management fee and other income primarily 
include management fee and transaction fee income 
for the management of 44 manufactured home com- 
munities, and equity earnings from CSI. The increase 
in 1999 from 1998 is due primarily to increased 
development activities in which the Company funds 
the development costs and recognizes interest income 
and expenses and increased equity earnings from CSI. 

Property operating and maintenance expense 
for the year ended December 31, 1999 increased by 
$3,412,000 or 7.3‘percent from the same period a 
year ago. The majority of the increase was due to 
increases in the Company’s Core 1998 Portfolio, and 
to a lesser extent, acquisitions. On a per site basis, 
monthly weighted average property operating and 
maintenance expense increased to $89.21 per site, 
or 4.3 percent. 

1999 increased by $424,000 or 3.5 percent from the 
year ended December 31, 1998. The increase is due 
primarily to acquisitions and expansions of communi- 
ties and general increases. On a site basis, monthly 
weighted average real estate taxes were $22.39 in 
1999 compared to $22.25 in 1998, an increase of 
.63 percent. Real estate taxes may increase or decrease 
due to inflation, expansions and improvements of 
communities, as well as changes in tax rates in the 
tax jurisdictions in which the Company operates. 

Administrative expense in 1999 was 5.2 percent 
of total revenues as compared to 4.8 percent in 1998. 

Interest and related amortization costs for 
the year ended December 3 1, 1999 increased by 
$1,03 1,000, as compared with the year ended 
December 31, 1998. The increase is attributed 

Real estate taxes for the year ended December 31, 
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primarily to the indebtedness incurrea to finance 
acquisitions and development. Interest expense as a 
percentage of average debt outstanding decreased to 
approximately 7.4 percent for 1999 from 7.7 percent 
in 1998. 

December 31, 1999, increased $2,168,000 from 
the same period a year ago. The increase is 
directly attributed to acquisitions and expansions. 
Depreciation expense as a percentage of average 
depreciable rental property in 1999 remained 
relatively unchanged from 1998. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

$84,961,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000, 
compared to $37,444,000 for the same period in 
1999. The increase in cash provided by operating 
activities was due primarily to the increase in ne1 
operating income. 

Net cash used in investing activities for the 
year ended December 31, 2000 was $73,123,000. 
This am*ount represents acquisitions, joint venture 
investments and advances, lending activity, capital 
expenditures and development costs. During 2000, 
the Company acquired two communities with a total 
of 410 sites and purchased development properties 
in Michigan and Iowa. These acquisitions were 
financed primarily by borrowings under the 
Company’s lines of credit. 

ended December 31, 2000 was $12,087,000. This 
consisted primarily of $81,534,000 in dividends 
and distributions paid to shareholders and OP 
Unitholders, $214,997,000 in payment of debt, 
and repurchasing approximately $11.3 million of 
common shares, offset partially by proceeds from 
debt issuances of $295,295,000. 

During 2000, the Company invested approxi- 
mately $10,100,000 in the expansion of its existing 
communities, resulting in the addition of 275 avail- 
able sites to its portfolio. In addition, during 2000, 
the-Company invested or advanced $22,000,000 to 

. certain affiliates of the Company. This consisted 
primarily of approximately $5,500,000 to joint 
ventures, through which the ,Company, or its joint 
venture partner is developing manufactured home 
communities, and $13,800,000 to ”Tandem, which 
owes the Company $38,466,000 as of December 31, 
2000. Far the year ended December 31, 2000, 
recurring property capital expenditures, o thex than. 
development costs, were approximately $7,400,000. 
Capital expenditures have historically been financed 
out of operating cash flow and it is the Company’s 
intention that such future expenditures will also be 
financed out of operating cash flow. 

Depreciation expense for the year ended 

Net cash provided by operating activities was 

Net cash used in financing activities for the year 

At  December 31, 2000, the Company had a 
,$lo0 million line of credit arrangement with 
Bankone, NA acting as lead agent for a bank 
group to provide financing for future construction, 
acquisitions and general business obligations (the 
“Bankone Credit Facility”). The ‘line of credit is 
unsecured, bears interest at  the prime rate of interest 
or, at the Company’s option, LIBOR plus 80 basis 
points. The line was scheduled to mature in 2001. 
In February 2001, the Company renegotiated the 
BankOne Credit Facility and increased it from 
$100 million to $125 million. The term‘of the new 
facility is three years and bears interest at LIBOR 
plus 90 basis points. In addition, the Company has a 
$7.5 million unsecured line of credit from US Bank, 
which bears interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 125 
basis points and matures in October 2001 (the 
“US Bank Facility’’ and, together with the Bankone 
Credit Facility the “Credit Facilities”). As of 
December 31, 2000, approximately $74.7 million 
was outstanding under the Company’s Credit 
Facilities and the Company had $32.8 hillion 
available in additional borrowing capacity, which 
was increased to approximately $57.8 million in 
available capacity with the February 2001 expansion 
of the Bankone Credit Facility 

As of December 3 I ,  2000, the Company had 
outstanding, in addition to the Credit Facilities, 
$320 million of unsecured senior debt with a weighted 
average interest rate and remaining maturity of 7.5 
percent and 3.7 years, respectively, and $136.9 million 
of secured mortgage debt with a weighted average 
interest rate and remaining maturity of 7.8 percent 
and 8.9 years, respectively. As of December 31, 2000, 
the Company had approximately $535 million of 
total debt outstanding, representing approximately 
34 percent of the Company’s total market capitaliza- 
tion. All of the debt is fixed rate debt, other than 
the Company’s Credit Facilities, and has a weighted 
average interest rate of 7.6 percent. 

In June 2000, the Company issued $116 million 
of 7.8% fixed rate mortgage debt, maturing in 2010, 
and collateralized by seven properties. Also in 
2000, the Company issued a total of $150 million 
of Unsecured Senior Notes, $100 million at 8.3% 
maturing March 1, 2005 and $50 million at 8% 
maturing August 1, 2003, resulting in net proceeds 
of $149 million. During 2000, the Company issued 
and repaid a $30 million unsecured short-term loan. 

On February 29, 2000, the Company announced 
the establishment of a share repurchase program 
pursuant to which it may repurchase up to 1,000,000 
shares of common stock from time to time. As of 
December 31, 2000, the Company repurchased 
453,900 shares for approximately $1 1.3 million. 
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In addition to repayment of long-term borrow- 
ings and amounts outstanding under the Credit 
Facilities, future acquisitions of communities and 
land for development and new community develop- 
ment activities represent the principal long-term 
liquidity needs of the Company. The Company 
does not expect to generate sufficient funds from 
operations to finance these long-term liquidity needs 
and instead intends to meet its long-term liquidity 
requirements through additional borrowing under 
the Credit Facilities or other lines of credit, the a 

assumption of existing secured or unsecured indebt- 
edness and, depending on market conditions and 
capital availability factors, the issuance of additional 
equity or debt securities. 

The Company expects to meet its short-term 
liquidity requirements, including expansion activities 
and capital expenditure requirements, through cash 
flow from operations and, if necessary, borrowings 
under the Credit Facilities and other lines of credit. 

IN FLATION 

at the communities allow for at least annual rental 
adjustments. In addition, a11 leases are short-term 
(generally one year or less) and enable the Company 
to seek market rentals upon reletting the sites. Such 
leases generally minimize the risk to the Company of 
any adverse effect of inflation. 

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS , 

Board (“‘FA””) issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting 
for Derivative lnstmments and Hedging Activities,” 

All of the leases or terms of tenants’ occupancies 

In June 1998, the‘Financia1 Accounting Standards 

which establishes accounting and reporting standards 
for derivative instruments and for hedging activities. 
This new standard requires that all companies record 
derivatives on the balance sheet as assets or liabilities, 
measured at fair value. Gains or losses resultmg from 
changes in the values of those derivatives would be 
accounted for dependingon the use of the derivative 
and whether i t  qualifies for hedge accounting. In 
June 1999, FASB issued SFAS No. 137, “Accounting 
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities - 
Deferral of the Effective Date of SFAS No. 133 - an 
amendment of SFAS No. 133.” SFAS No. 137 defers 
the effective date of SFAS No. 133 to fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2000. 

In June 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 138.” 
Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and 
Certain ‘Hedging Activities-an amendment of FASB 
Statement No. 133.” This statement amends certain 
requirements of SFAS 133. The Company will 
prospectively adopt SFAS No. 138 on January 1, 
2001, the required date of adoption. The adoption of 
SFAS No. 138 will not have a material impact on the 
financial statements of the Company, but will result 
in the reclassification of certain deferred gains and 
losses to accumulated other qomprehensive income. 

Bulletin (“SAB”) ’101 released by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission, entitled “Revenue 
Recognition in Financial Statements.” SAB 10 1 estab- 
lishes guidelines in applying generally accepted 
accounting principles to the recognition of revenue 
in financial statements based on specific criteria. The 
adoption of SAB 101 had no material ef€ect on the 
Company’s financial position or results of operations. 

In 2000, the Company adopted Staff Accounting 
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I OTHER 

Funds from operations (“FFO”) is defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts 
(“NAREIT”) as consolidated net income of the Company without giving effect to gains (or losses) from debt 
restructuring and sales of property and rental property depreciation and amortization. Management believes 
that FFO is an important and widely used measure of the operating performance of REITs, which provides a 
relevant basis for comparison among REITs. FFO (i) does not represent cash flow from operations as defined 
by generally accepted accounting principles; (ii) should not be considered as an alternative to- net income as a 
measure of operating performance or to cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities; and (iii) 
is not an alternative to cash flows as a measure of liquidity. FFO is calculated as follows: 

For the Year Ended December 31, 

In thousands 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 

Income before minority interests $48,722 $44,962 $34,486 $ 24,688 $ c 16,100 
Less: 

. Plus: 
Income allocated to Preferred OP Units 6,094 6,094 4,249 - - 

Amortization of intangibles - 405 446 407 - 
Gain on sales of properties - (2,805) (253) 

Depreciation of rental property 43,289 41,161 38,962 30,867 11,360 

- - 
Funds from operations $ 85,917 $ 77,629 $69,392 $ 55,962 $ 27,460 ‘ 

NAREIT has revised its definition of FFO. The Company adopted the new definition effective January 1, 
2000. The new definition of FFO substantially eliminates the add-back of the non-recurring items in the 
calculation of FFO. The application of this new definition decreased FFO in 1998 by $375,000, and had no 
effect on any other years reported. 



Financial Review: REPORT OF INDEPENDENT- ACCOUNTANTS . 
To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Chateau Communities, Inc.: 

I 

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, 

shareholders’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Chateau 

Communities, Inc. (the “Company”) at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its operations and its 

cash-flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with accounting 

principles generally accepted in- the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility 

of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 

on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally 

accepted in the United States of America which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examin- 

ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and discl.osures in the financial statements, assessing the 

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial 

statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

, 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Denver, Colorado 
February 14, 2001 



Financial Review: CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

For the Year Ended December 31, 

In thousands, except per  share data 2000 1999 1998 

REVENUES 

Rental income 
Interest income 

$186,963 $ 177,789 $ 167,206 
10,794 6,796 3,68 1 

Management fee and other income 7,008 4,778 2,243 
204,765 189,363 173,130 

EXPENSES 

Property operating and maintenance 51,849 50,506 47,094 
Real estate taxes 13,426 12,675 12,251 
Depreciation and amortization 43,920 41,826 39,658 
Admiriis tra tive , 10,448 9,881 8,354 
In teres t and related amortization 36,400 32,318 31,287 

156,043 147,206 138,644 
Income before net gain on sales of properties 48,722 42,157 34,486 

Income before minority interests 48,722 44,962 34,486 
Less income allocated to minority interests: 

Preferred OP Units 6,094 6,094 4,249 
Common OP Units 4,842 4,242 3,436 

Net income available to common shareholders $ 37,786 $ 34,626 $ 26,801 

Net gain on sales of properties - 2,805 - 

PER SHARE/OP UNIT lNF.ORMATlON 

Basic earnings per common share $ 1.33 $ 1.23 $ 0.98 
Diluted earnings per common share $ 1.3-2 $ 1.23 $ 0.97 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

. 



Financial Review: CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

December 31, 

In thousands 2000 1999 

ASSETS 

Rental property: 
Land 
Land and improvements for expansion sites 
Manufactured home community improvements 
Community buildings 

~ Furniture and other eaubment 

$ 139,417 $ 
26,145 

836,228 
56,403 

13531 1 
23,320 

816,278 
55,978 

33,258 24,063 
1,09 1,45 1 1,055,450 ’ Total rental property 

Less accumulated depreciation 235,653 192,015 
Net rental property 855,798 863,435 

Cash and cash equivalents 99 348 
Rents and other receivables, net 7,107 3,257 
Notes receivable 
Investments in and advances to affiliates 

24,539 8,485 
119,727 97,761 

Prepaid expenses and other assets 10,594 8,38 7 
Total assets $1,017,864 $ 981,673 

LIABILITIES - 
Debt 
Accrued in teres t payable 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Rents received in advance and security deposits 

$ 535,470 $ 452,556 
6,953 5,284 

14,085 17,688 
7,816 7,044 

Dividends and distributions payable 765 16,139 
To tal liabilities 565,089 498,7 1 1 

Minority interests in Operating Partnership 
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11 & 12) 

SHAREHOLDERS’ E Q U f N  

Preferred stock, $ . O l  par value, 2 million shares authorized; 
no shares issued or outstanding 

Common stock, $.01 par value, 90 million shares authorized; 
28,531,675 and 28,424,900 shares issued and outstanding 
at December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively 

Additional paid-in capital 
Dividends in excess of accumulated earnings 
Notes receivable from officers, 577,432 and 371,698 shares 

116,863 121,142 
- - 

285 284 
445,905 446,23 1 
(97,605) (76,647) 

outstanding at December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively (12,673) (8,048) 
335,9 12 361,820 To tal shareholders’ equity 

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $1,017,864 $ 981,673 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thefinuncial statements 



Financial Review: CO-NSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY * 

For the Year Ended December 31, 

In thousands, except per share data 2000 1999 1998 

COMMON STOCK: 

Balance at  beginning of period 
Common stock issued, net of issuance costs 
Issuance of shares from awards, exercise of 

$ -284 $ 279 $ 255 
19 - - 

options and sales to key employees 4 1 4 
Issuance of shares in exchange for OP Units 1 4 2 

(1) 
Balance at end of period $ 285 $ 284 $ 279 

- Repurchase and retirement of 3hares (4) 

ADDITIONAL PAID-CAPITAL: 

Balance at beginning of period $ 446,231 $ 432,711 $ 356,780 
I 53,659 

Issuance of shares from awards, exercise of options 
and sales to key employees 8,607 3,394 9,115 

Issuance of‘shares in exchange for OP Units 3,700 9,212 6,553 

Transfer (to) from minority interests ownership in 

Balance at end of period $ 445.905 $ 446.231 $ 432.711 

~ Common stock issued, net of issuance costs - 

Repurchase and retirement of shares (1 1,3 19) (61) (931) 

Operating Partnership (1,314) ’ 975 7,535 

DIVIDENDS IN EXCESS OF ACCUMULATED EARNINGS: 

Balance at beginning of period 
Net income 

$ (76,647) $ (56,637) $ (33,174) 
37,786 34,626 26,BUl 

Dividends declared $2.06. $1.94 and $1.82 Der share (58.744) (54.636) (50.264) 
~~~ ~~ 

Balance at end of period $ (97,605) $ (76,647) $ (56,637) 

NOTES RECEIVABLE, OFFICERS: 

Balance at beginning of period $ (8,048) $ (8,418) $ (895) 
Issuance of 205,734 and 357,062 shares in 2000 and 1998, 

- respectively, through sales to key employees (4,670) I (7,557) 
Payments received 45 370 - 34 

, Balance at end of period $ (12,673) $ (8,048) $ (8,418) 
Total shareholders’ equity, end of period $ 335,912 $ 361,820 $‘367,935 

The accompanying n o m  are an integral part ofthe ftnoncial statements 



Financial Review: CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 

In thousands . 2000 1999 1998 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITtES: 

Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Income attributed to minority interests 
Net gain on sale of properties 
Depreciation and amortization 
Amortization of debt issuance costs 
Increase in operating assets 

$ 37,786 $ 34,626 $ 26,801 

4,842 4,242 3,436 

43,920 41,826 ., 39,658 
605 730 764 

(1,299) (3,243) (690) 

- (2,805) 

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities (893) 2,088 2,591 
Net cash provided by operating activities 84,961 77,464 72,560 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Acquisitions of rental -properties and land to be developed (5,725) (13,259) (116,605) ~ 

Dispositions of rental properties - 13,108 3,329 

Investments in and advances to affiliates (2 1,966) ( 27 $8 2) (38,855) 

Net cash used in investing activities (73,123) (56,777) (167,089) 

Additions to rental properties and equipment (29,378) - (24,606) . (14;958) 

Advances on notes receivables, net (1 6,054) (4,338) - 

CASH FLOWS FROM ,FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Borrowings on lines of credit 
Payments on lines af credit 
Principal payments on debt 
Proceeds from the issuance of debt 

Payment of debt issuance costs 
bistribu tions to shareholderdOP Unitholders 
Common shares/OP Units repurchased and retired 

' Payoff of debt 

305,599 119,130 120,935 
(3'28,186) (58,549) ( 109,200) 

(1,572) (1,176) (1,828) 
295,295 - - 

( 190,838) (23,5 9 8) (3,3 15) 
(237) 

(81,534) (60,244) (53,629) 
(1 1,323) (76) (932) 

(617) - 

Net proceeds from the issuance of common shares - I _ I  53,678 
Net proceeds from the issuance of Preferred OP Units - 73,002 
Exercise of common stock options and other 1,089 3,724 1,595 

Net  cash provided by (used in) financing activities . ( 12,087) (20,789) 80,069 
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (249) (102) (14,460) 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 348 450 14,910 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ . 99 $ 348 $ 450 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION: 

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 34,126 $ 30,626 $ 30,110 
Fair market value of OP Unitdshares issued for 

acquisi tionsldevelopment $ 754 $ 13,341 $ 29,150 
Debt assumed in connection with acquisitions and development $ 1,835 $ 650 $ 34,171 

- 

The accompanying noles m e  an integral part of the financial statements 



Financial Review: NOTES TO CONSOLlDATED FINANCML STATEMENTS 

NOTE i ORGANIZATION AND FORMATION OF COMPANY 

Chateau Communities, Inc. (the “Company”), a 
real estate investment trust, was formed in-November 
1993 as Chateau Properties, Inc. In 1997, the Com- 
pany merged with ROC Communities, Tnc. (“ROC”). 

The Company considers itself to be engaged in 
only one industry segment. The Company is engaged 
in the business of owning and operating manufac- 
tured housing community properties primarily ’ 

through CP Limited Partnership (the “Operating 
Partnership”). As of December 31, 2000, the 
Company owned 166 proppties containing an 
aggregate of 52,347 homesites and 1,359 park 
modeVRV sites, located in 28 states. Approximately 
31 percent of these homesites were in Michigan 
and 25 percent were in Florida. The Coinpany also 
fee managed 44 properties containing an aggregate 
of 9,200 homesites. A manufactured housing com- 
munity is real estate designed and improved with 
sites €or placement of manufactured homes. The 
owner of the home leases, the site from the Company, 
generally for a term of one year of less. 

NOTE z SUMMARY OF SIGNtFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying consolidated financial state- 

ments include a11 accounts of the Company, its wholly 
owned qualified REIT subsidiaries and its Operating 
Partnership. The Company and ROC are general 
partners of the Operating Partnership. All significant 
inter-entity balances and transactions have been elimi- 
nated in consolidation. 

The Company conducts manufactured home 
sales and brokerage activities through its taxable sub- 
sidiary Community Sales, lnc. (“CSl”). The Company 
owns 100% of the preferred stock of CSI and is enti- 
tled to 100% of its cash flow. The Company accounts 
for its investment in CSI utilizing the equity method 
of accounting, since the Company does not own any 
of the voting common stock of this entity. 

Revenue Recognition 
Rental income is recognized when earned and 

due from residents. The leases entered into by resi- 
dents for the rental of a site are generally for terms 
not longer than one year and are renewable upon 
the consent of both parties or, in some instances, 
as provided by statute. Rent received in advance is 
deferred and recognized in income when earned. 

Income Tmes 
The Company has elected to be taxed as a real 

estate investment trust (REIT) under Section 856(c) 
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
The Company generally will not be subject to Federal 
income tax to the extent it distributes at least 95% of 
its RElT taxable income to its shareholders. RElTs are 

- 

subject to a number of organizational and operational 
requirements. If the Company fails to qualify as a 
REIT in any taxable year, the Company will be sub- 
ject to Federal income .tax (including any applicable 
alternative minimum tax) on its taxable income at 
regular corporate rates. The Company remains sub- 
ject to certain state and local taxes on its income ’md 
property as well as Federal income and excise taxes 
on its undistributed income. 

Earnings Per Share 
Basic earnings per share are computed based 

upon the weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding during the period. The conversion 
of an OP Unit to common stock has no effect on 
earnings per common share since the earnings of an 
OP Unit are equivalent to the earnings of a share of 
common stock. Diluted earnings per common share 
are computed assuming the exercise of all outstand- 
ing stock options that would have it dilutive effect. 

Rental Property * 

Rental property is carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation. Management evaluates the recoverability 
of its investment in rental property whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that full asset 
recoverability is questionable. Management’s assess- 
ment of the recoverability of its rental property 
includes, but is not limited to, recent operating 
results, expected net operating cash flow and man- 
agement’s plans for future operations. If a rental 
property is determined to be significantly impaired, 
the asset is written down to its estimated fair value. 

’ For the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 
there were no impairment conditions at any of the 
Company’s properties. 

Depreciation 
Depreciation on manufactured home com- 

munities is computed .primarily on the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 
The estimated useful lives of the various classes of 
rental property assets are primarily as follows: 

’ 

\ 

Class of Asset I 

Estimated Useful 
Lives (Years) 

Manufactured home community 
improvements 20 to 30 

Community buildings 25 to 30 
3 to 10 Furniture and other equipment 

Maintenance, repairs, and minor improvements 
to rental properties are expensed when incurred. 
Major improvements and renewals are capitalized. 
When rental property assets are sold or otherwise 
retired, the cost of such assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation, compared to the sales proceeds, are rec- 
ognized in income as gains or losses on disposition. 
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- 

Capitalized Interest 

during periods of construction through the substan- 
tial completion of the site. Interest capitalized by the 
Company for the years ended December 31, 2000, 
1999, 1998, was $1,644,000, $1,249,000, and 
$579,000 respectively. 

Cash Equivalents 
All highly liquid investments with an initial 

rnatujity of three months or less are considered to be 
cash equivalents. 

Debt Issuance Costs 

interest rate protection are deferred and amortized 
on a straight-line basis, which approximates the 
effective interest method, over the term of the 
related loans or agreements. These costs, net ‘of 
accumulated amortization, are included in prepaid 
expenses and other assets in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets. 

Fair Value of Financial Instrunients 

ments other than debt approximate their carrying 
values at December 31,-2000 and 1999. The fair 
value of the Company’s debt at December 31, 2000 
and 1999 was estimated to be $533 million and 
$447 million, respectively, based on current interest 
rates for comparable loans. 

Minority Interests 
Minority interests include common operating 

partnership units (“OP Units”) that are convertible 
into an equivalent number of shares of the Company’s 
common stock. Issuance of additional shares of 
common stock or OP Units changes the percentage 
ownership of both the minority interests and the 
Company. Since an OP Unit is equivalent to a com- 
mon share (due to, among other things, its exchange- 
ability for a common stock share), such transactions 
are treated as capital transactions and result in an 
equity transfer adjustment among shareholders’ 
equity and minority interests in the Company’s 
consolidated balance sheet to account for the change 
in the respective ownership in the underlylng equity 
of the Operating Partnership. 

lncome before minority interests is ascribed 
to the holders of common OP Units based on their 
respective weighted average ownership percentage of 
the Operating Partnership. The ownership percentage 
is determined by dividing the number of common 
OP Units held by the limited partners by the total 
common OP Units outstanding, including the OP 
Units held by the Company. 

Also included in minority interests is approxi- 
mately $73 million, which represents 1.5 million 
8.125OA Series A Ciimiilative RedePmAhlP Prpfprrprl 

Interest is capitalized on development projects 

Costs incurred to obtain financing and costs of 

The fair value of the Company’s financial instru- 

exchangeable on or after April 20, 2008 for authorized 
but unissued shares of 8.125% Series A Cumulative 
Redeemable Preferred Stock of the Company. 

Use of Estimates 

formity with generally accepted accounting principles 
involves the use of certain management estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements 
and the reported amounts df revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Reclassifications 
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 

prior year information to conform to-the current year , 
presentation. These reclassifications have no impact 
on net operating results previously reported. 

Recently Issued Accuunting Standards 
In June 1998, the Financial Accounting 

Standards-Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 133, 
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities,” which establishes accounting and report- 
ing standards for derivative instruments and for 
hedging activities. This new standard requires that all 
companies record derivatives on the balance sheet as 
assets or liabilities, measured at fair value. Gains or 
losses resulting from changes in the values of those 
derivatives would be accounted for depending on 
the use of the derivative and whether it qualifies for 
hedge accounting. In June 1999, FASB issued SFAS 
No. 137, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and 
Hedging Activities - Deferral of the Effective Date of 
SFAS No. 133 -.an amendment of SFAS No. 133:’ 
SFAS No. 137 defers the effective date of SFAS No. 
133 to fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000. 

In June 2000, the FASB issued SFAS No. 138, 
“Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and 
Certain Hedging Activi ties-an amendment of FASB 
Statement No. 133.” This statement amends certain 
requirements of SFAS 133. The Company will 
prospectively adopt SFAS No. 138 on January 1, 
2001, the required date of adoption. The adoption of 
SFAS No. 138 will not have a material impact on the 
financial statements of the Company, but will result 
in the reclassification of certain deferred gains and 
losses to accumulated other comprehensiye income. 

Bulletin (“SAB”) 101 released by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, entitled “Revenue Recog- 
nition in Financial Statements.” SAB 101 establishes 
guidelines in applying generally accepted accounting 
principles to the recognition of revenue in financial 
statements based on specific criteria. The adoption 
of SAB 101 had no material effect on the Company’s 

The preparation of financial statements in con- 

In 2000, the Company adopted Staff Accounting 

r:,,, ,,; -1 - - -: c:  _- -- _^^__ 1 * - If -- ---- L 1  - -- - 
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NOTE 3 COMMON STOCK AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS 

to which it may repurchase up to 1,000,000 shares of common stock from time to time. As of December 31, 
2000, the Company repurchased 453,900 shales for approximately $1 1.3 million. 

ended December 31,2000, 1999, and 1998. , 

On February 29,2000, the Company announced the establishment of a share repurchase program pursuant 

The following table represents the changes in the Company’s outstanding common stock for the years 

2000 1999 1998 

Common shares outstanding at January 1 - 28,424,900 27,936,016 25,476,172 
Common stock issued - - 1,850,000 

Shares-issued in exchange for OP Units 141,328 349,233 246,489 
Shares issued through stock awards, sales to key employees 

and the exercise of stock options 4 19,347 142,416 406,688 
Common shares outstanding at December 31 28,53 1,675 28,424,900 27,936,O 14 

Shares repurchased and retired (4 5 3,9 00) (2,765) (43,333) 

The Company paid a dividendldistribution of 
$.515 per common share/OP Unit on April 14, 2000; 
July 14, 2000; October 16, 2000 and December 29, 
2000 to shareholders and OP Unitholders of record 
as of March 31, 2000; June 30, 2000; September 30, 
2000 and December 15, 2000, respectively. 

The Company paid a dividend/distribution of - 

$.485 per common shardOP Unit on April 14, 1999; 
July 15, 1999; October 15, 1999 andjanuary 18,2000 
to shareholders and OP Unitholders of record as of 
March 31, 1999; June 30, 1999; September 30, 1999 
and December 27, 1999, respectively. The dividend/ 
distribution paid on January 18, 2000 was included 

- 

in distributions payable in  the accompanymg consoli- 
dated balance sheet as of December 31, 1999. 

and are collateralized by the underlying common 
shares. 

In February 1998, the Company received net 
proceeds of approximately $53.7 million from the 
issuance-of 1,850,000 shares of its common stock. 

, The proceeds from the offering were used to finan’ce 
acquisitions made in March 1998 and to reduce out- 
standing balances under the Company’s line of credit, 
which was used to finance acquisitions made in 
January 1998. 

The notes receivable from officers bear interest 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
In thousands, except per  share data 2000 1999 1998 

BASIC EPS: 

Income (1) $ 42,628 $38,868 $30,237 
Weighted average common shares outstanding 28,480 28,135 27,285 
Weighted average common OP Units outstanding 3,650 3,447 3,497 
Weighted average common shares and OP Units - Basic 32,130 . 3 1,582 30,779 
Per Share $ 1.33 $ 1.23 $ 0.98 

DILUTED EPS: 

Income (1) $ 42,628 $38,868 $ 30,237 
Weighted average common shares outstanding 28,480 28,135 27,282 

Employee stock options 94 132 275 
-Weighted average common shares and OP Units - Diluted 32,224 31,714 3 1,054 
Per Share . $ 1.32 $ 1.23 $ 0.97 

Weighted average common OP Units outstanding 3,650 3,447 3,497 

I 

(1)  Represents income befDre minority interests less the income allocated to rhe Prejerred OP Units. 



Financial Review: NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FlNANCLAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 4 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS OF RENTAL PROPERTY 

The following table summarizes acquisitions made by the Company as follows: 

Dollars in thousands 
Amount Fair Market 

Number of Number of Allocated to Value of OP Units/ Debt 
Acquisition Date Communities Sites State Assets Acquired Shares Issued Assumed Cash (1) 

December 2000 1 295 GA $ 2,550 $ 17 $ 1,835 $ 698 
Februarv 2000 1 115 AL $ 1,600 $ -  $ -  $ 1,600 
October 1999 1 315 AL $ 8,712 $ - L  $ 650 $ 8,062 
Ami1 1999 1 309 AL $ 4.013 ‘ $ - $ -  $ 4.013 
April 1998 5 10 2,587 ’ MI $ 78,100 $ -  $ 12,401 $ 65,699 

March 1998 5 839 IN $37,600 $ -  $ -  $ 37,600 

January 1998 2 96 1 sc $ 15,900 $ 9,620 $ -  $ 6,280 
January 1998 10 1,093(2) FL $38,700 $ 18,307 $ 19,335(3) $ 1,058 

2 607 NC 

1 662 MI 

4 * 276 CT 
(I) The cash used mfmance the Company’s acquis~tions was provided by borrowings on the line ofcrcdit, the issuance of I 85 million common shares in February 1998 

(2) Does not include parhlmodel RV sites 
(3) Includes $12 milltonfor a capital lease obligation, which was converted to OP Units in 1999 

(see Note 3) and the issuance ofB7.5 million of Preferred Units in 1998 

The following unaudited pro forma income 
statement information has been prepared as if the 
significant acquisitions made in 1998 had occurred 
on January l., 1998. No pro forma adjustments were 
made for the 2000 and 1999 acquisitions, as the 
effects on reported results were not material. The pro 
forma income statement information is not necessarily 
indicative of the results, which actually would have 
occurred if these acquisitions had been consummated 
on January 1, 1998. 

In thousands, except per share data . 1998 

Revenues $176,154 
Total expenses $141,125 
Net income* $ 29,872 
Per common share* $ 0.93 

*After allocation LO Prefeired OP Units Assumes all common OP Units are 
exchanged for common stock 

In 2000, the Company also acquired land to be 
used for future development for a total of $3,427,000. 

During the year 1999, the Company disposed of 
two properties in Florida, with a total of 509 sites for 
a combined price of $1 1,700,000. These dispositions 
resulted in a net gain of $2,805,000. 

NOTE 5 NOTES RECEIVABLE 

notes receivable from entities that are not‘affiliated 
with the Company. These entities all own, or are 
developing, manufactured home communities. These 
notes are collateralized by manufactured home com- 
munities or by partnership interest in partnerships 
that own manufactured home communities. These 
notes have a weighted average interest rate of 12.2% 
and mature betweek 2002 and 2009. Management 
has evaluated the collec tibility of these receivables 
and has determined that no valuation allowance 
is necessary. 

NOTE 6 INVESTMENTS I N  AND ADVANCES TO AFFILIATES 

Investments in and advances to affiliates as of 

Included in notes receivable is $20.4 million of 

December 31, consisted of the following: 

2000 1999 

Community Sales, . 

Development joint 

”Tandem Trust 

Inc. (“CSI”) $ 25,242 $22,538 

ventures 56,019 50,567 

(“N’Tandem”) 38,466 24.656 
$119.727 $97.761 
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CSI 
Advances to CSI are primarily used to finance 

inventory purchases. These advances have an interest 
rate of prime plus 1% (10.5 percent as of December 31, 
2000). The Company accounts for its investment in 
CSI. using the equity method of accounting 

Development Joint Ventures 
The Company is currently involved in seven 

joint ventures to construct ground-up “greenfield 
communities.’’ In the majority of the arrangements, 
the Company acts as the developer or co-developer, 
performing all accounting and property management 
functions, and the Company acts as a lender to 
finance the development costs. As such, the Company 
advances amounts to the joint ventures to fund con- 
struction and recognizes the related interest income as 
earned. The Company primarily borrows on its line of 
credit to fund the advances and, accordingly, includes 
the related borrowing costs in interest expense and 
related debt in its balance sheet. In the majority of 
the arrangements, the Company has the option to 
purchase the completed community when it reaches 
a pre-determined occupancy rate. The Company is 
also involved in two joint ventures in whikh its joint 
venture partner is constructing the communities. The 
Company has similar arrangements to lend these joint 
ventures funds to finance development. The Company 

- 

NOTE 7 FINANCING 

The following table sets forth certain information regarding debt at December 31: 

accounts for its joint ventures which it does not 
control utilizing the equity method of accounting. 

”Tandem 
In March 1998, the Company entered into an 

investment agreement (“Agreement”) with ”Tandem. 
Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company purchased 
19,139 common equity shares of ”Tandem. The 
Company owns approximately 10 percent of- 
”Tandem’s outstanding stock and accounts for its 
investment utilizing the equity method of accounting. 
The Company also recognizes income from a property 
management agreement, an advisory agreement and 
interest income on advances as earned. 

During 2000,1999, and 1998, ”Tandem 
borrowed $13.8 million, $23.6 million and 
$10.7 million from the Company in order to fund 
acquisitions. In 1999 ”Tandem obtained a line of 
credit that was used to repay some of the borrowings 
in 1999 and 2000. These notes were due December 31, 
2000. During 2000, the Company extended the 
maturity to December 2001. As of December 31, 
2000: all amounts owed the Company were 
unsecured borrowings bearing interest at the prime 
rate of interest plus one percent per annum. , 

As of December 31, 2000 ”Tandem owned 36 
communities with 7,835 homesites. 

Principal Balance Weighted 
Average (In thousands) 

Interest Rate Maturity Date 2000 1999 

$ 105,802 Fixed rate mortgage notes 7.82% 2002-2010 $ 136,899 
2003-2005 320,000 245,000 Unsecured Senior Notes 7.50% ’ 

Unsecured lines of credit 7.46Oh 200 1 74,730 97.317 
Other notes payable 3,841 4,437 

$ 535,470 $ 452,556 

At Decerpber 31,2000, the Company had a 
$100 million line of credit arrangement with 
Bankone, NA acting as lead agent for a bank group to 
provide financing for future construction, acquisitions 
and general business obligations. The line of credit is 
unsecured, bears interest at the prime rate of interest 
or, at the Company’s option, LIBOR plus 80 basis 
points (7.32 percent at December 31, 2000):The line 
was scheduled to mature in 2001. In February 2001, 
the Company renegotiated this facility and increased 
it from $100 million to $125 million. The term of the 
new facility is three years and bears interest at LIBOR 
plus 90 basis points. In addition, the Company has a 
$7.5 million unsecured line of credit from US Bank, 
which bears interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 125 basis 
points (7.77 percent at December 31, 2000). As of 

December 3 1, 2000, approximately $74.7 million 
was outstanding under the Company’s lines of credit 
and the Company had available $32.8 million in addi- 
tional borrowing capacity. 

During 2000, the Company had approximately 
$86.2 million of mortgage debt and $75 million of 
unsecured Senior Notes mature. The Company repaid 
this debt using the proceeds from the issuance of new 
debt in 2000. 

In June 2000, the Company issued $116 million 
of 7.8% fixed rate mortgage debt, maturing in 2010, 
and collateralized by seven properties. Also in 
2000, the Company issued a total of $150 million 
of Unsecured Senior Notes, $100 million at 8.3% 
maturing March 1, 2005 and $50 million at 8% 
maturing August 1, 2003, resulting in net proceeds 
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of $149 million. During 2000, the Company issued 
and repaid a $30 million unsecured short-term loan. 

I .  The Company has $100 million 6.92% 
Mandatory Par Put Remarketed SecuritiesSM 
("MOPPRSsM") due December 10, 2014. The. 
remarketing dealer paid the Company $2 million 
for the right to remarket the securities in 2004. The 
remarketing fee is being amortized over the life of the 
related debt. Upon the remarketing dealer's election 
to remarket the MOPPRSSM, the interest rate to the 
December 10, 2014 maturity date of the MOPPRSSM 
will be adjusted to equal the sum of 5.75% plus the 
Applicable Spread (as defined in the remarketing 
agreement). In the event the remarketing dealer does 
not elect to remarket the MOPPRSSM, the MOPPRSSM 
will mature in 2004. 

As of December 31, 2000 the Company has a 
total of 15,collateralized properties. 

The financing arrangements contain customary 
covenants; including a debt service coverage ratio 
and- a restriction on the incurrence of additional 
collateralized indebtedness without a corresponding 
increase in rintalkroperty. 

The aggregate amount of principal maturities for 
the fixed rate debt subsequent to December 31, 2000 
(in thousands) is as follows: 

. 

NOTE 8 MINORITY INTERESTS IN OPERATING PARTNERSHIP 

Minority interests in the accompanymg consoli- 
dated balance sheets represent both the common 
and preferred ownership interest in the Operating 
Partnership held by third parties. The common 
minority interest represents common OP Units, which 
are convertible into an equivalent number of shares 
of the Company's common stock. As of December 31, 
2000 and 1999, common minority interest was 
approximately 11 and 12 percent, respectively. 

OP Units into shares of common stock of the 
Company at a one for one exchange ratio. These 
transactions result in an increase of outstanding 
common shares, and a corresponding decrease of 
outstanding OP Units, classified as minority interests 
in the consolidated balance sheet. 

' 

Certain OP Unitholders convert their common 

L 

200 1 $ 1,320 
2g02 1,842 
2003 121,483 
2004 103,338 
2005 107,947 
Thereafter 120.969 

$ 456.899 
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The following is a summary of activity of the common minority interest in the Operating Partnership, 
including the transfer adjustment amongthe common minority interest and shareholders’ equity in the 
consolidated balance sheets to account for the change in the respective ownership in the underlying equity of 
the Operating Partnership. 

In thousands 

Operating 
Partnership Minority 

Units Interest. 

Minority interest in Operating Partnership at January 1, 1998 2,775 $ 35,2-72 
Minority interest in income - 3,436 
Distributions declared, $1.82 per unit - (6,295) 
Issuance of OP Units at fair value in connection with acquisitions 

and development 995 29;150 
(246) (6,555) 

Transfer to shareholders’ equity - (7,535) 
Minority interest in Operating Partnership at December 31, 1998 3,524 $ 47,473 

Exchange of OP Units for shares of common stock 

Minority interest in income 
Distributions declared, $1.94 per unit 
Issuance of OP Units at fair value in connection with acquisitions 

Exchange of OP Units for shares of common stock 
and development 53 1 13,341 

(349) ( 9 2  16) 
(975) 

3,706 $ 48.185 
Transfer to shareholders’ equity - 
Minority interest in Operating Partnership at December 31, 1999 

Minority interest in income 
Distributions declared, $2.06 per unit 
Issuance of OP Units at fair value in connection with .acquisitions 

Exchange of OP Units for shares of common stock (141) (3,70 1) 
Transfer from shareholders’ equity - 1,3 14 
Minority interest in Operating Partnership at December 31, 2000 3,593 $ 43,906 

and development 28 754 

Also included in minority interests on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are 1.5 million 
Preferred OP Units issued in April 1998. The balance at both December 31, 2000 and 1999 was approximately 
$73 million. 
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NOTE g STOCK OPTION PLANS 

The Company measures compensation cost using the intrinsic value method, in accordance with 
Accounting Principles Board Opinion-No. 25 (“APB 25’7, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” 

The Company’s 1999 and 1997 Equity Compensation Plans and 1993 Long Term Incentive Stock Plan 
(collectively, the “Plans”) provide for up to 3.1 million shares of common stock that may be granted to direc- 
tors, executive officers and other key employees. The Plans provide for the grant of options, restricted stock 
awards and stock appreciation rights. The compensation committee of the Board of Directors determines the 
vesting schedule of each option and the term, which term shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant. 

’ 

Information concerning stock options is as follows: 

2000 1999 1998 

Shares subiect to option: 

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted- 
Average Average Average 

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price 

Outstanding at beginning of year 1,417,218 $ 25.66 1,236,893 $ 24.79 1,197,406 $ 21.66 
Granted (l) 547,000 24.19 384,160 - 27.73 447,500 30.12 
Exercised (344,486) 21.79 (137,480) 21.30 (406,838) 19.30 
Forfeited (59,398) 27.46 (66,355) 28.97 (1,175) 19.10 
Outstanding at  end of year ( 2 )  1,540,334 $ 26.01 1,417,218 $ 25.66 1,236,893 $ 24.79 

Options exercisable at year-end 634,442 803,696 823,257 

Options available for grant 
at year-end 458,268 945,870 363,675 

(I) The options granted do nor include the grant 0~50,000 shares of rcstncted stock in 2000 io uecutive officers of the Company. 
(2) For the year-ended December 31, 2000, 721,000 options are considered anti-dilwtrve. 

For all options granted during 2000, 1999, and 1998, the weighted average market price of the Company’s 

The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and exercisable options at 
common stock on the grant date was approximately equal to the weighted average exercise price. 

December 31, 2000. 

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable 

’ Weighted- 
Average Weighted- Average 

Range of Exercise Number Remaining Average I Number Exercise 
Prices Outstanding Contract Life . Exercise Price Exercisable Price 

$18.26 - $26.00 822,334 7.6 years $23.36 345,442 $22.18 
$27.44 - $30.13 718,000 7.6 years $29.04 ‘ 289,000 $29.43 

The fair value of each option was estimated as of date of grant using an option-pricing m‘odel with the 
following assumptions used: 

2000 * 1999 1998 

Estimated fair value per option granted 

Assumptions: 
Annualized dividend yield 
Common stock price volatility 
Risk-free rate of return 
Expected option term (in years) 

. ~~ ~~ 

$ 2.44 $ 2.22 $ 3.56 

7.70% 6.90% 6.25% 
20.5% 17.3% 22.6% 
4.38% 5.29% 5.63% 

9 10 10 
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If compensatiori cost for stock option grants had been recognized based on the fair value at the grant dates 
for 2000, 1999 and 1998 consistent with the method allowed by SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation,” net income and net income per common share would have been: 

2000 1999 1998 

Net income, as reported $37,786,000 $34,626,000 $26,801,000 
Net income; pro forma $36,756,000 $34,347,000 $26,490,000 

Basic earnines uer common share. Dro forma, $ 1.29 $ 1.22 ‘ $  0.97 
Basic earnings per common share, as reported $ 1.33 $ 1.23 $ 0.98 

Diluted earnings per common share, as reported $ 1.32 - $ 1.23 $- 0.97 - 
Diluted earnings per common share, pro forma $ 1.29 $ 1.22 $ 0.96 

NOTE io SAVINGS PLAN 

The Company has a qualified retirement plan 
designed to qualify under Section 401 of the Internal 
Revenue Code (the “Savings Plan”). The Savings 
Plan allows employees of the Company and its sub- 
sidiaries to defer-a portion of their compensation on 
a pre-tax basis subject to certain maximum amounts. 
Contributions by the Company are discretionary 
and determined by the Company’s management. 
Company contributions are allocated to each partici- 
pant based on the relative compensation of the 
participant to the compensation of all participants. 

i The Company contributed approximately $500,000, 
$560,000, and $550,000 for the Plan years ended 
December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998 respectively. 

NOTE ii RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

Rental expense of approximately $130,000 
annually has been incurred for leased space in an 
office building owned by certain officers and equity 
owners. The office lease expires November 2001. 

factured home inventory for resale from Clayton 
Homes, Inc. (“Clayton Homes”), which is affiliated 
with one of the Company’s directors. During 1998 
and 1999, CSI purchased 22 homes and one home 
respectively for a cost of approximately $540,000 
and $32,000 from Clayton Homes. 

may obtain financing from Vanderbilt Mortgage and 
Finance, Inc. (“Vanderbilt”), which is also affiliated 
with the same director. In certain cases, for homes 

’ 

The Company, through CS1, purchases manu- 

In addition, when CSI sells homes,. the purchaser 

sold before June 1998, Vanderbilt has recourse to 
the Company if the loans are not repaid. As of 
December 31, 2000 there is a total of approximately 
$13.2 million of such amounts that are recourse to 
the Company. 

Included in management and other income is 
$4,549,000, $1,610,000 and $582,000 of manage- 
ment and other fee income received from ”Tandem 
for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999, 
and 1998 respectively. Included in this amount is 
approximately $3.2 million of acquisition and trans- 
action fees and $1.3 million of management and 
advisory fees. 

In December 2000, the Company purchased 
a manufactured home community from a partnership 
owned by two officers of the Company for 
$2,550,000. This community contains 295 developed 
homesites (See Note 4.) 

NOTE 12 CONTINGENCIES 

I 

Several claims and legal actions arising from the 
normal course of business have been asserted against 
the Company, and are pending final resolution. Tn 
the opinion of management, none of these matters 
will have a material adverse effect upon the results 
of operations, financial condition or cash flows of 
the Company. 

-The Company, through its joint venture and 
affiliate arrangements, has guaranteed approximately 
$47.8 million of debt, $20 million of which is to 
”Tandem. 



Financial Review: NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 13 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 

The following is quarterly financial information for- the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 
(amounts in thousands, except per share data). 

First Second Third Fourth 
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 

March 31, lune 30, September 30, December 31, 

2000 

Total revenues $ 48,849 $ 50,774 $ 51,270 $ 53,872 
Operating income (a) $ 30,593 $ 31,976 !$ 32,235 $ 34,238 
lncome before minority interests 
Less income allocated to minority interests 

Preferred OP Units 

$ 11,307 $ 12,607 $ 11,759 $ 13,049 

1,523 1,524 1,523 1,524 
Common OP Units 1,125 1,256 1,160 . 1,301 

Net income available to common shareholders $ 8,659 $ 9,827 $ 9,076 $ 10,224 
Net income per share - basic (b) $ 0.30 $ 0.35 $ 0.32 I $ 0.36 

$ 0.32 $ 0.36 Net income per share - diluted (b) !$ 0.30 $ 0.34 

1999 
To tal revenues $ 45,608 $ 46,837 $ 48,106 $ 48,812 
Operating income (a) $ 28,238 $ 28,953 $ 28,910 $ 30,200 
Income before minority interests $ 9,617 $ 13,641 $ 10,909 $ 10,795 

\ 

Less income allocated to minority interests 
Preferred OP Units 
Common OP Units 

1;523 1,524 1,523 1,524 
910 1,346 1.037 949 

Net income available to common shareholders $ 7,184 $ 101771 $ 81349 $ 8,322 
Net income per share - basic (b) $ 0.26 $ 0.38 $ 0.30 $ 0.29 
Net income Der share - diluted (b) $ 0.26 $ 0.38 $ 0.30 $ 0.29 

(a) Operating income rqreescnts total revcnues less property operating and maintenance expense, real estate taxes and administrative expense Operating income is a 

@) Quarterly eamings per comrnon share amounts may not totdl to the annual amounts due to rounding and to the change in the number ~Jcommon shares outstanding 
measure o j  th; performance of thc properties before the effects o j  depreciation and interest and rdated amortization costs 
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CHATEAU’S REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST STATUS 

The Company operates as a real estate investment 
trust (“REIT”) f& taxation purposes, and as such 
must distribute at least 95 percent of its REIT taxable 

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES 

Please direct shareholder questions or requests for 
information to: 
Marti Dowling 

income, and is generally exempt from federal income 
taxes. This treatment by the Internal Revenue Code 
substantially eliminates the “double taxation” at the 
corporate and shareholder levels. 

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 

Chateau’s annual meeting of shareholders will be 
held at 9:00 a.m. on May 17, 2001 at the Company’s 
headquarters, 61 60 South Syyacuse Way, Greenwood 
Village, Colorado. 

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS 

Chateau Communities, Inc. 
.6160 South Syracuse Way 
Greenwood Village, Colorado 801 11 
Tel: 303.741.3707 
Fa%: 303.741.3715 
Web: www.cha teaucomm.com 

COUNSEL 

Clifford Chance Rogers & Wells LLP 

Timmis & Inman 
New York, New York 

Detroit, Michigan 

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN 

Chateau offers a dividend reinvestment plan, which 
permits participating shareholders of record to reinvest 
dividends in Chateau’s common stock. Participating 
shareholders also may invest up to $1,000 in additional 
funds each quarter for the purchase of additional 
shares. A brochure describing the plan in detail and 
an authorization form may be obtained from the’ 
transfer agent. ‘ 

h 

, 

Chateau Communities, Inc. 
61 60 South Syracuse Way 
Greenwood Village, CO 801 11 
Tel: 303.874.3388 
E-mail: CPJIR@chateaucomm.com 

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR 

First Chicago Trust Company of New York 
c/o EquiServe 
P.O.Box 2500 
Jersey City, NJ 07303 
Tel : 800.7 5 6.8 2 00 
Hearing impaired: TDD: 201.222.4955 
Web : www. equise rve . c om 
E-mail: fc t c@em. fcnbd. com 

WEBSITE 
www. chateau c o.mm . com 
We encourage you to visit our web site. The site 
includes current stock trading information, a complete 
overview of the Company, all SEC filings, recent 
press releases, information on each community in 
the portfolio, and more. 

COMMON STOCK 

Common stock listed and traded on The New York 
Stock Exchange, Symbol: CPJ 
As of March 8, 2001, Chateau had approximately 
28,598,673 common shares and 3,589,659 operating 
partnership units (“OP Units”) outstanding. Also 
as of March 8, 2001, the Company’s directors and 
executive officers owned a total of 4.8 million shares 
of common stock and 686,000 OP Units, representing 
inside ownership of 19 percent. 

- IN DEPEND E NT ACCO U NTANTS 1 At March 8, 2001 there were approximately 600 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP holders of record and approximately 14,000 beneficial 

owners of Chateau’s common stock. Denver, Colorado 
Closing price on March 8, 2001 - $30.50 
Annual Dividend at March 30, 2001 - $2.18 

- SEC FORM 10-K 

Copies of Chateau’s Annual Report on Form 10-K 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
will be furnished without ch?rge upon written request 
to the Company’s lnvestor Relations Department. 
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Back row from left to right: Steven G. 
Donald E. Miller, Rhonda Hogan, Ed\ 
Anton, Jr., James 1. Clayton 
Front row from left to right: James M. 
John A. Boll, C.G. Ueff) Kellogg 

Davis, James 
ward R. Allen, 

Lane, Gary I? 

M. Hankins, 
Gebran S. 

, McDaniel, 

STEVEN G. DAVIS 
Director - Founder and President of 
East Silent Advisors 

JAMES M. HANKINS 
Director - Managing General 
Partner of Hanhins Enterprises 

DONALD E. MILLER 
Director - Former Vice Chairman of 
The Board of Directors of The Gates 
Corporation 

RHONDA HOGAN 
Director - Partnel; 
Tishman Speyev Properties 

EDWARD R. ALLEN 
Director - Former President and CEO 
of InterCoastal Communities, Inc. 

GEBRAN S. ANTON, JR. 
Director - Owner of Gebran Anton 
Development Co. G Anton, Zom G 
Associates, Inc. 

JAMES 1. CLAYTON 
Director - Founder and former 
Chairman of Clayton Homes, Inc. 

JAMES M. LANE 
Director - Former Senior Vice 
President in Charge of NBD Bank’s 
Trust Investment Division 

GARY P. McDANlEL 
Director and Chief Executive Officer 

JOHN A. BOLL 
Chairman of The Board of Directors - 
Former Chief Executive Officer; 
Co-Founder and Partner of 
Chateau Estates 

C.G. (JEFF) KELLOGG 
Director and President 



D. ASELA. 6.1. ADAiulS, 0. ADAMS, K.A. ADAMS, B. AGNES, M. AHLSTRAND, D. AKERS, L. ALDRICH, M. ALEXANDER, 5. ALLAN, W .  ALLEN, P. ALLEN-RYDER, I .  ALMANZA, J.M. ALMANZA. 

P. ALVARADO, M. ALZAPIEDI.  T. AMAYA. I. AMK, K.  AMO, J. AMUKDSON, J. A M u r r D s o n ,  E. A N D t R S E N ,  E. A N D E R S O N ,  I. ANDERSON, T. ANDERSON, B. ARNOLD, L. ARNOLD, R. ARKOLD, 
R. ASHER. M. ASHLINE. S. ASHLINE.  1. ASIIWORTH, I. ATKINSON. R. AULT, B.  AUSTIN, S. AUSTIN, A. AVERY, L. AYALA, C. A Z U R E ,  G. AZURE,  K.A. BAFICOCK, B. BACKENSTOE, 

G. BADALAMENTI,  R. B A K L M E I E R ,  c. BAKER, s. BAKER, T. BAKER, w. BALDLIKAS, E. EALDWIN, W. BALL, M.W. E A N C R O r T ,  M. BANrlL,  w. BANTFIER. L. BARCKHOLTZ.  1. BARELA, 

J. BARGMANN, M. BARNHARDT, A. BARROS. F. BARTLETT. 5. BARTLETT, D. BAXTER, 0. EEAMAN, L. B t A R D ,  M. BEARDSLEY, L. EEAVINER, M. BELL, W. BELSON IR,  5. BENNETT, A. BENTLEY, 

R. BENTLEY, 5. BENTLEY, P. B E R M E R ,  K. BERRY, 5. EETZER, 8. BIENERT, 0. BITTINGER, R. BLOCK, 1. E L U E ,  C. BOEGNER, L. BOHANNON, D.  BOJDA. E. 6 0 J O R Q U E 2 ,  1. EOLEN, ].A. BOLL, 

G. BOLLENEACH, A. BOLTHOUSE, B. BOLTHOUSE, S.E. BOMBARDIER-COX, K. BUND, R. BONER, A. BONGER Ill, L. BOOM, M. BOOM, F. BORJA, B. B O R I ~ O S I ~ I .  I. BOVCE, C. BOWERS, 

J. BOWERS, J. BOWERS, L. BOYER, I .  BRASIER, G. ERISEIN, 0. BRISTOL, P. ERITAIN, W .  BRITAIN, N. BROOICINS,  L. BROTZICE, C.W. B R O W N ,  D. BROWN, F. BROWN, I .  BROWN, J. BROWN, 
L. BROWN, N. BROWN, R. BRUNDAGE, €3. BRUSH, D. BRUSH, G. BRYANT, E. BULLARD, E. BURCIALA. M. BURDETTE, A. BURCETT,  G. B U R K E ,  M.E. BURNHAM, R. eURt4HAM. H. BURRIS, 

T. BURT, C. CAIN. F. CAIN, K. CAIRNS, D. CALCAGNO, R. CALCAGNO, 0. CALCATERRA, M. CALCATERRA. J. CALDERON, E. CAh?MAROTA, R. CAMP, W.D. CAMP. F. CAMPEELL. I. CAMFBELL, 

C. CANNON, M. CnrJs i rdo,  S. CANTORNA, A .  CANTU JR.. I. CANTU. R. CANTU, D. CAPE, G. CAFCLING, K.V. CARLSON, N. CARRANZA, W .  CARRIER. C. CARSON, D. CARTER, P. CARUSO, 

1. CARVALHO, 5. CARVER. M. CASINELLI, D. CASICEY, L.W. CASKEY, D. CASSIDY, M. CASTANCDA J R ,  M. CASTANEDA, w. CATTONI. 5. C I I A T E ,  G. CHAFFCE, C. CHANCE, C. CHANCE, 

C. CHAPPAAN. M. CHAPMAN, P. CHAPMAN, L.F. CHAULIL C. CIiERRY, M. CHESSER, D. CHICK, L. CHILDS, J.E. CHRISTIA14, A. CHRISTY. C. CHVALA, D. CHYNOWETH. C. CLARK, J. CLARK, 

T. CLIFFORD, W.E. C O W  C. COCHRAN, S. COCflRAN, N. COTFEY, I. COLE, W .  COLEMAN, L.L. COMER. T. CONNELL, J. CONWAY, C. COOGLER, M. COON, G .  COOPER. J. COPPCRMAN, 

J. COTTINCHAM, C. COTTON, F. COUGHLIN, C. COULTER, G .  COULTER. 1. COUTtLLE,  E. COWARD, L. COWARD, T. COX 1 1 1 ,  B.G. COX, P. COX, R.  COY"^, T.M. CRAIG, C. CROFF, 5. CROFF, 

J. CRONIN. E. CROSS, 5. CROSS, I. CROW, 0. C U N N I N G H A M ,  6. CURRY, D. CURRY, G. DAMIANI,  H. DANGERFIELD, C. DANNER, M. DAUK, M. D n u K ,  D. DAVIS,  G. DAVIS, 

M. DAVIS, P. DAVIS, R. DAVIS, R. DAVIS JR..  E. DAVISON, P.A. DAVISON. J. DAWSON, J. DAWSON. W. DAY. R. DETIENNE. R. DELEON, hl. DEPSICY, C. DESCHENES, N. DEWITT, K. DEWULF, J. DIETZEL, 

D. DIMCNT, L. DlXO:d, J. DONOVAN, K. DORRIES. M. DOWLING, A. DRAGER, D. DRtW. L. DREW. D. DUFFY, S. DUGGER, S. DUlt[S, 0. DurdLnp, I(. DUNN GRIMM. R. DUVtRNEAU, E. DWORAK, R. DZUBA, 

T. ECKLES, J. EDO, K, EDWARDS, V. EGAN, L. EGEERT, Y. EGBERT, B. EGLI, R. EGLI, C. ELTING,  J. E M M I ,  L. ENGLE, D. ERE, H. ERHARD, M. ERICICSON, D. EVANS, J. EVANS, M. EVERT, 

5. EWING, C. FAILLA, 14. FALLON, F. F A U L K N E R  11, c. FAULICNER, 1. F E I R E R ,  E. FENNELLY, J. FERGUSON. 5. FERNANDEZ, 1. FERNIE, 5. FERRELL, J. FETTER, B. FEW, R. FINLEY, 0. FINNEY. R. FISCHER,T. FlSCHCR, 

F. FISHER J R ,  B. FISHER. 1. FISHER, G. FITTS, K. ~ L I C K f N t C R ,  R. FOGG. M. FONTACO. D. FORD, V. FOKDIIAM, K. FORSTCR, T. FOSTER, L. FOWLER, J. FOX. F.A. FRATCSCIII, J.  FRAZIER, 

J. FRLDCTTE, E. FREYMUTTH. V. FROEHLY, fJ. FRYANT, 1. FULGENCIO, B. FULLER, A. FURTIN, 5. GAGRIEL, R. GAGNE, 1. GnchioN,  N. GALIDA, W. GALIDA, L. GALL, P. GALL, C. GALLEGos,  M. GALLIGAN, 

R. GARLIN, A. GARZA, H. GARZA, I. GATES, J. GEARY. R. GEBAUER. L. GEISER, A. GEORCIOU, K. GEUTHCR. D. GIANNINO, P. GIBSOFJ jR., 0. GILBERT, R. GILROY, R. GIEOURARD, J.D. GLASPIE, 5. GLASS, 

0. GODWIN, D. GOCRGEN, C. GOLDIE, F. GornEs.  M. GONZALES, 1. GONZALEZ. G. GOOLDY, G. GORECICI, R. GRANGER, L. GRAVEN, D. GRCGORY, E. GREYCRBlEtIL, J. GRILLONE, E. GRIMALDO, 1. G R D E G E R ,  
C. GROSS, R. GRUSXA, E. GUNIA, D. G U N T I I O R P E ,  0. GUSTAFSON, T. HACKNtV, K. HAGGCRTTY, A. HALL. 1. HAMIC, K. HAMlC. C. HAMILTON, F. HAMILTON. K. HAMILTON, W. HAMILTON. J. HAMM 1 1 1 ,  

C. HAMM. V. HANCOCK, J .  HARDY, D. HARMON IV, L. HARPER, C. HARRINGTON, 1. HARRIS JR., H. HARRIS, L. HARRIS, R. HARRIS, T.F. HARRIS, C. HARTMAN, M. HATLESTAD, 0. HAYES, 8. HAYS, 
M. HAYS, B. HEADY, J. H E A R O L D ,  E. HEGGE, 6. HEIMLER, B. HKLMtS, L. HERMAN, L. HERMAN, C. HERNANDEZ, C. HERNANDEZ, R. IIESS. M. HESTIR, H. H I L L ,  J. HILL, N. HILL.  R. HILL, T. HILL, 

5. HILLnRD, K. HILLIS, hl. HITSON, 1. HOCKERSMITH, v. HODSON, D. HOFFMAN. J. HOrFMAN. M. HOFTMAN, P. HOFFMAN, R. HOTFMAN, 8. HOLEROOK, 5. HOLEY. D. HOLLOWAY, T. HOLM, 
5. HOLMAN, 1. HOLMES, J. HOLUB. R. HOLUB, C.L. HOOVER, C. HORNE, H. HORNE, J. HORNER, D. HORTON, J. H o s i c i ~ s ,  C.T. HOVE, B. HOWARD. E. HOWARD, F. HOWARD, 5. HOWARD, 0. HOWE, 
K. HowlEsoN, 5. HOWIESON, M. HOYT, D. HUDSON, 5. HUDSON. L. t iUENNEI(ENS, R. HUGAERT, R. tlULI(ER, T. HULKER, D. HUNT, G. HUNT, E. HYATT, E. IEARRA, H. IBARRA, 

R. INGRAMM, M. IRIZARRY, J. IRWIN, 5. JASI~OLKA, G. JENsON, J. JESTER, H. I I A N G ,  A. ]OIIf4SON, 0. JOHNSON, F. JotjNsoN, 1. JOHNSON, J. JOHNSON, R. JOHNSON, 5. JOHNSON. B.J. JONES, 

0. JONES, D. JONES, 0. lordrs, T. J O N E S . ~ .  JONES, K. JORDAN, B. JOSEPH, N. JOSEPH, J. KACZMARSKI, M. KACZMARSKI. K. KANDT, 5. KANTZ, C. KEELING, P. KELLEN, 5. KELLEN. M. KELLEY, W .  KELLEY, 

C.G. KELLOGG, E. KTLLOGG. I. KELLY, 1. KELLY, R. K r r w ,  H. KENNEDY. J. KENNEDY, E. KENNEWAY, L. KFRLEY. D. KERN, M. KERR, A. KILPATRICK, K. KIMCERLY, D. KIMGLE, D. KING, 
D. KIREY, J. KIRTLEY, P. KLINE, D. KLUCAS. F. KNAFELZ, 5. KNAFELL, J. KNICICMAN, C. KNirriN, N.C. KNIGHT, J. KNIGHTON, T. KNIGHTON, E. KNUDSEN, D. KOEHL, H. KOEHN, C. KORRECIC, 

J. KORRCCK, 5 .  KOWAL, c. KOWALCYK, c. KOWALZKI, w. KRALIS, 11. KRE65, I .  KROIIN, Y. KUCHAREK, I. LAPENNA. G .  b s l i O M B ,  D. LAGCLLE, 1. LABCLLE, N. LAEFLLE, c. LACHANCE, L. L F C R T E ,  R. LAFCRTE, 
R. LAGASSE, B. LAMELRT, R. LAMBERT, C. LAMPEN, A. LANGELLI, P. LANGELLI, D. LANZA. R. LAPAIC. B. LARSEN, E. LARSEN, E. LARSEN, R. LASHOMB, G.  LAUER, J. LAUER, E. LAURIE, 

P. LAWRENCE, V. LAWRENCE, G. LAWSON, J. LAY, R. LECLAIR, I. LEAZENBY, D. LEELANC, J. LEELANC, C. LEEPER, P. LEGGCTT, R. LEIEY, H. LEONARD, C. LESTER, R. LETHBRIDGE, 

S. LEVANDOWSKI, T. LEVY, C. LEWIS SR., A. LEWIS, 0. LEWIS, R. LEWIS, W. LEWIS, E. LICIITENFELS, H. LIENING, K. L l l t t s ,  D. LILLIS. R. LINDSEY, 0. LINDSTROM, M.A. LINCERFELT, C. LOBATO-GARES. 
E. LOCATI, L. LOCATI, 1. LOGAN, J. LOPES, E. LOPEZ, 1. LOPEZ, R. LORING, R. LORING, A. LOSHER, 1. LOUPJSBERRY, R. LOUNSBERRY, A.  LOUNSBURY, E.M. LUKE. H. LUCE. A. LUCENTE. J. LUCENTE, 

P. LUCY, S. LUNEECK. J. LYNCH 111, A. LYNCH, J. LYNCH, L. LYNCH, D. MAC LEAY, N. MACLEAY, R. MADDEN, N. MADLWICI(, P.A. MAIIAN, C. MAKARAVAGE, M. MALDONADO, G. MALONEY, 
J. MARTIN, W.W. MARTIN. M. MARTINEZ, 5.K. MASON, 5. MASSEY, J. MASTLL, R. MATHIAS, M.A. MAXFIELD, M.M. MAXON, M. MAY, F. MAYHUGli. L. MAYHUGH, G. MCCLANAHAN, 

J. MCCLATCHEY, 5. MCCLENNEY, D. MCCOMMON, E. MCCRORY, T. MCCUNE, C. MCDANIEL, G. MCDANIEL, D. MCDONALD, G. MCDONALD, B. MCELROY I R . ,  E. MCEVOY, J. MCEVOY, C. MCGCE, 

S. MCINTYRE, E. MCMfiHON, L. MCMAHON, P. MCMAliON. L. MCMASTERS. R. MCMASTLRS, E. MCMILLAN, c. MEAEON, V.L. MEDINA, R. ME~IA, K. MLLENDY, A. MENDEZ, M. MERCER, 

D. MEYER, L. MEYCR, L. M E Y E R ,  S. M C Y t R ,  B. MICHALISHYAN, G. MIENHEARTT, D.F. MILLER, E. MILLER, W. MIMS, G.D. MIRABAL, C. MIRABEL, A. MITCHELL 1 1 ,  B. MITCHELL, S. MOELLER, J. MOFFEIT, 

E. MONEY, M. MONROE, E. h'IONTALV0, C. MONTCALM, E. MOORE, K. MORELAND, W .  hlORELAND, C. MORELOS, P. M O R G A N ,  R. MORGAN, 5. MORGAN, G. MORRIS, R. MORRIS, 
R. MORRIS, C. MosICR, P. MOSLCY, W. MOULDER, R. MUELLER, R. MUNRO, E. MURPHY, 5. MURPIIY, T. MURPHY, E. MURRAY. E. MUSGNUG, D. MUSSER. M. NACHAZEL, P. NASON, D. NEIL. B. NELSON, 
J. NELSON, J. NELSON, R. NELSON, 5. NESS, P. NETZEL. A. NEVINS. 5. NEWLANDS, B. NEWMAN, E. NEWTON, C. ~ I C I I O L A S ,  B. NICIIOLS, R. NICHOLSON, G. NIELSEN-CONNER, J. NIGHTINGALE, 

L. NILES, R. NOFFSINGER, C. NUTT,  I. O'ERYAN, J. O'BRYAN, M. O'CONKELL, C. O ' D o r d N u ,  J. O'DONNELL,  M. O'GUIN, 8. O'NEILL, 5. OAKLEY, D. OCERT, J. ODjIcIC, R. OEHLBECK, R. OLD, 

B. OLIVER, J. ONIFtR. 1. OUDENDYIC, F. PACKARD. L. PADILLA, L. PADILLA. T. PAGLtA, L. PALAZZOLO, G. PALIN, C. PALMORE, I. PARKER JR, M. PARKER,  B. PARMENTER, 1. PARMENTER, D.G. PARR, 
P. PARR, A. PASSOW. R.D. PAnERSON, B. PAULSON, 0. PAYNE, 1. PAYNE, R. PEAICE, D.1. PEDERSEN, F. PERALES, M. PEREIRA, L. PEROTTI, I. PEROZZItLLO. R. PERRYMAN, K. PETERS, 1. PETERSON, 
C. P t T S I N C E R ,  F. P~IILLIPS, M. PHILLIPS, 0. PII(ER, W.L. PILGRIM, D. POCHMARA, J. POLLARD, B. POLLARDDIETZEL, 6. POLLINGER, L. POMPANO, P. POTTER, W .  POTTER, K. POWERS, 

L. PREDMORE, D. PRESSON, D. PRICIETT, R. PRIDEMORE. I.T. PRINGLE, L. PROCISSI, M. PROCIS~I, W. PROCTOR, 1. PUTZU, M. PUTZU, H. QUIGLEY, H. QUIGLEY. M. QUIGLEY, W. RACE, 

K. RACKE, V. RAt(OWSI(1, A. RAMIREZ, N. RAMIREZ, T.M. RAMIREZ, J. RATLITF, L. RAYMENT, A. REASNER, M. REMOUR, R. RENO, A. RENUSCH, F. RICARDO JR., A. RICIIARDSON, B. RICIIARDSON, 

M. RICHARDSON, N. RICHARDSON. 1. RICHTER, A. RICICEY, L. RIDDERIICHOFF. T. RIEDLE, D. RISICE, K. RITTER,  W .  RIVAS, I. ROACH, M. ROSBINS, K. ROEERTS, R. ROBERTS, R. ROBERTSON, 

R. RODGERS, A.M. RODRIGUE, R.L. ROGERS, W. ROGERS, S. ROLLINS, H. ROSADO, D. ROSE, M. ROSE, R. ROSE, T. ROSE, M. R o s s ,  G. ROUSSEAU, T. ROUSSEAU, J. RULLO SR.. F. R u s c i n o ,  

S .  SAKHUK, L. SCHAAD, R. SCHAAD, 0. SCHACK. M. SCHAEFER, S. SCHAUB, L. SCHMIDLIN, J. SCHMIDT, K. SCHMIDT, 0. SCHROEDER, J. SCHROEDER, R. SCHULTZ, M. SCHUMAN, 
D. RUSHrORD, H. RUSHFORD, 1. RUTHERFORD Ill. E. RUTHERFORD, J. RUTLCDGE, R. RYAN, 1. SALGADO, K. SANBORN. N. SANGORN. w. SANDERS. F. SANDY, 1. SARAZIN. H.D. SAUNDERS, R. SAUNDERS, 

R. SCHUYLER, M. SCHWARTZ. C. SCOTT, C. SCOTT, L. SCOTT, S. SELVIA. R. SHAFFER. I. SKAWVER, I. SHELAR. P. SHELAR, P. SHELLHOUSE, A. S H E R R I L L ,  D. SHIRI<EY, D. SHIRKEY, D. SHIRKEY, 

J. SHIRIKY, P. StIIRKEY, R. SHOCK, R. SILCRIO, H. SIMPSON, K. SIMS, R. SIORDIA-GOMEZ, T. SIVICIC, R. SIX, J. SLATER, C. SLOWKE, 5. SLOWICE, E. SMALLWOOD JR, G. SMALLWOOD, 

1. S M E G E L S I C I ,  A. SMITH,  B. SMITH, c. SMITH, c. S M I T H ,  0. SMITH, G .  S M I T H ,  y\. SMITH, M. SMITH, R. S M I T H ,  R. SMITH, R. S M I T H ,  5. S M I T H ,  W. SMITH, R. SNAP!' JR., 

J. SNEDDON. N. SNOWDEN. J. SOCHIA, 1. ~Ol tOLOWSl<l ,  H. S O L I S  JR., M. SPEARS. R. SPII(ES. C. SPRAGUE, I. ST PIERRE. L. STACY, I. STAGNER, C. STAMPER, L. STANSEERRY, T. STECKER, 

A. STEGER, R. STEGER, L. STEGGS, 6. STEPHENS, s. STEPHENS, G. STEWART, K. STIDHAM, C. STITH. N. STITH, D. STOESER, s. STOESER. D. STOFFELS, F. STOFFELS, K. STOLL, 0. STOLL. 

H. STONE, J. STONE, C. STOPPS, H. STOVER, M. STOVER, T. STRICKLAND, L. STROMAN, R. STUCI(W1SCH JR., E. STULL, T. SULLIVAN, G .  SUTHERLAND, L. SUTTERF~ELD, D. SUTTON, D. SWAIN, M. SWAIN, 

E. SWEAT, L. SYLVESTER, L. SYLVESTRE, P. TANNAHILL, M. TAYLOR, 5. TEGTMAN, 0. TENNANT, D. TENNANT, J. TERRANOVA. I. THAYER, D. THOMPSON, J. THOMPSON, R. THOMPSON. 

V. THOMPSON, L. THORNTON JR. J. THORNTON. A. TIMKEN, J. TIMKEN. G. TOLLIS, P. TOMLINSON, P. TORMAN, C. TORRES, J. TRASK, T. TREMBLAY, 1. TREMMEL, R. TRUDEL, S .  TSILIS, B. TUCKER, 

L. VANDLRSLOOT, T. VANNORSTRAND, R. VANWOERT JR., B. VANWOERT, H. VAUGHN, 5. VELASCO, N. VERDOW. W. VERDOW, J. VERROCCHI, H. VESTAL, M. VICKERS, C. VINCENT, J. VOYLES, 

1. WATKINS, J. WATKINS, S. WATK~NS, J. WATSON Sa, R. WATSON, C. WEBER, 6. WEDMAN, j. WEIDMAN, N.E. WEIR, C. WELSH. C. WENDT, 

P. WHITE, B. WICK, D. WICK, K. WILEY, 5. WILEY, J. WILFONG, 1. WILFONG, V. WILKE, A. W I L I ~ I E ,  H. WILLIAMS, J. WILLMASER, C. WILSON, 
D. WILSON, P. WILSON, R. WILSON, T. WILSON, M. WINCHELL, A. WINTERS, S. WITTUM, T. WOLF, E. WOLFF, H. WOLFF, R. WOLSCHON, L. WOOD, 

1. WYGANT, C. WYLIE, R. YAROSH, 5. YATES, 1. YEOMAN, J. YORK, R. YORIC, C. YOUNG, C. YOUNG, E. YOUNG, R. YOUNG, 

G. TUCKER, C. TUFF, 8. TURNER, s. TURNER, A. TYLER, K. ULANDER, s. UNDERWOOD, D. VAN EVERY, G. VANAMBURGH. M. VANBECK, w. VANCE, c. VANDERLAAN, L. VANDERSLDOT, 

P. WACHTER, M. WADE, C. WAGNER. D. WAGNER, D. WAHLERS JR, S. WAITE, J. WALDEN, J. WALKER, R. WALKER, G. WALTER, N. WALTER, M. WALTERS. G. WANNER, A. WARNICK, A. WARREN, 

B. WERFIELD, C. WERFIELD, A. WEST, W. WESTBROOK, M. WHALEN, A. WHAPLES, 0. WHAPLES, M. WHITAKER, C. WHITE, E. WHITE, K. WHITE, 
. _ .  

, _ '  I , .  , 

_ .  . _ .  

C. WOODS, R. WOODS, M. WOODWARD, 1. WORLEY, R. WORLEY, 5. WOTHERSPOON, M. WOTRING, H. WRIGHT, T. WYANT, 
6160 South Syracuse Way 



COMMUNITY ADDRESSES 

(W) A Garden Walk 

(WW) Audubon Village 

(W&WW) Camp Inn Resort 

(WW) DelTura * 
(W&WW) Eldorado Estates 

(WW) FairwaysCC 

(W&WW) Foxwood Farms 

(W&WW) Harmony Ranch 

(W&VVW) Hidden Valley 

(WW) Land 0 Lakes 

(W) Lucerne Lakeside 

(W&W/W) Oak Springs 

(W&WW) Orange lake 

8200 N. Military Tr. 

6565 Beggs Rd. 

3455 North Hwy 27 

18621 N. Tamiami Tr. 

2320 Eslinger Rd. 

94205 E. Colonial Dr. 

4500 NW Blitchton Rd. 

10321 Main St. 

8950 Polynesian Ln. 

1800 E. Graves Ave. 

125 lxora Dr. 

12 Highland St. . 

15840 SR 50 

Pafm Beach Gardens, F t  33470 

Orlmdo, FL 3281 0-2541 

Frostproof, FL 33843 

N. Fort Myers, FL 33903 

New Smyma Beach, FL 32168-93211 

Orlando, FL 32826 

Ocala,FL 34482 

Thonotosassa, FL 33592 

Orlando, FL 32836 

Orange City, FL 32763 

Winter Haven, F t  33881 

Sorrento, FL 32776-9600 

Clermont, Ft 3471 1-871 1 

(Wslww) Starlight Ranch 6000 E. Pershing Ave. Orlando, FL 32822 

(WW) Tarpon Glen 1038 Sparrow Ln. Tarpon Spgs., FL 34689 

( W & W )  Winter Haven 50 Charlotte Dr. Winter Haven, FL 33880 

(w) Winter Paradise 16108 US 19 Hudson, Fl 34667 

* Regulated by the PSC (Certificate No. 2 9 8 - S )  
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BEFORE THE STATE OF FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF E m 0 " T A L  PROTECTION 

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT 1 IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, 1 CENTRAL DISTRICT 

Complainant, 

vs. 

1 
) 

) 
OGC FEE NO. 94-1144B 

i 
CWS COMMUMTES LP, A FOREIGN 1 
LIMlTED PARTNERSHIP, 1 

Respondent. 

AMENDMENT TO CONSENT ORDER 94-1 144 

The State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection ("Department") and 

Aafaya Palm Valley Associates, Ltd. executed a Consent Order in OGC Case No. 94-1144 

(i'Originat Order"), on August 5,  1994. On August 30, 1999, Alafaya PaIm Valley Associates, 
- 

Ltd. transferred Palm Valley Mobile Home Park Wastewater Treatment Facility ("WWTF") to 

CWS Communities LP, a foreign Limited partnership ("Respondent"). This Amended Consent 

Order which amends the Original Consent Order is entered into between the Department md 

the Respondent. It is hereby agreed between the parties that this Amended Consent Order s h a  

amend al l  of the provisions of the O@hal order in its entirety. 

The Department finds and the Respondent admits the following: 

1. The Department is the administrative agency of the State of Florida having the 

power and duty to protect Florida's air and water resources and to administer and enforce the 

provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes, and the rules promulgated thereunder, Title 62, 

Florida Admhistrative Code. The Department has jurisdiction over the matters addressed in 

this Consent Order. 
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2. Respondent is a person within the meaning of Section 403.031(5), Florida 

S tatutes. 

3. Respondent is the owner and is responsible for the operation of the Palm Valley 

Mobile Home Park W, a 0.126 MGD extended aeration wastewater treatment facility 

with chlorinated effluent discharged to an absorption field system consisting of a three-cell 

(Al, A2 & B) dripper system and no discharge to surface waters of the state ("FaciIity"). me 
Facility is located at 13781 Alafaya Td, Seminole County, Oviedo, Florida, Latitude 

28O37'10" North, Longitude 81O12'00" West. 

4. Respondent operates the Facility under Department Wastewater Permit NO. 

FLAOl1085-01 which expires OR June 15,2002. 

5. As a result of deficiencies noted during an inspection by Department Personnel 

on May 7, 1993, Warning Letter OWL-DW-936013 was issued on July 9, 1993. A meeting 

was held on August 3, 1993 between the Department and the Respondent's predecessor during 

which all of the disputed issues were discussed. The Respondent's predecessor did not 

necessarily admit to any of the deficiencies. Durhg the period between August 25, 1993 

through March 7, 2994, representatives of the Respondent's predecessor reported to the 

Department numerous events where the percolation ponds overflowed to surrounding ground 

surfaces or to surface waters. 

6 .  On September 15, 1994, the Respondent's predecessor paid the Department 

$2,897.0 in settlement of the matters addressed in the Original Order. This amount includes 

$2,397.00 in civil penalties for alleged violations of Section 403.161, Florida Statutes, and of 

the Department's rules and $500.00 for costs and expenses incurred by the Department during 

the investigation of this matter and the preparation and tracking of the Original Order. 

, 

7. The Respondent's predecessor submitted a permit application to expand the 

facility's disposal system on May 7, 1997. The Department issued Wastewater Permit No. 

FLAOll085-01 on July 15, 1997. On June 8, 1998, the Respondent's predecessor submitted 

Notification of Completion of Construction for Wastewater Facility ("Notification"). By 

Department letter dated July 30, 1998, the Department achowledged receipt of the 
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Notification but could not approve it. There were numerous letters and telephone c d s  by 

Department staff attempting to resolve deficiencies in the As-Built Drawings submitted with 

the Notification. 

8. On May 5,  1999, the Department issued Noncompliance Letter OCD-C-W- 

99-0225 for failure to comply with the conditions in Paragraph 9a of the Original Order. On 

June 8, 1999, a meeting was held between the Department and the Respondent's predecessor 

to discuss the three-cell dripper system that was not constructed in accordance with the plans 

submitted with the permit application. The Respondent's predecessor stated that the mobile 

home park is being expanded and that the Facility will also need to be expanded. The 

Respondent's predecessor suggested that additional disposal capacity, to replace the deficient 

A2 cell, could be constructed during the expansion. Department staff  cautioned the 

Respondent's predecessor that the deficient A2 cell should only be used when absolutely 

necessary. 

9. In a letter dated June 21, 1999, the Respondent's predecessor provided a written 

response to the meeting reiterating the planned expansion and requesting that the Origind 

Order be modified to include the expansion as corrective action to resolve the noncompliance 

issue. 

10, Having reached a resolution of the matter the Department and the Respondent 

mutually agree and it is 

ORDERED: 

11. Respondent shall comply with the following corrective actions within the stated 

time periods: 

On or before February 29, 2000, Respondent shaU submit an application to the 

Department for a substantial modification of the current permit, along with the appropriate 

permit fee, to modify the plant's effluent disposal system. The modification shall address the 

repair of A2 cell or its elimination and the expansion of the disposal system to provide for a 

total permitted capacity of at least 0.126 MGD. The application shaIl be prepared and sealed 

by a professional engineer registered in the state of Florida. In the event the application is 
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incomplete, Respondent shall submit the requested information within 30 days of receipt of a 

request for additional information to complete the application, unless a written justification for 

an extension of time is submitted and approved by the Department within that time m e .  

Within 270 days from the issuance of the Wastewater permit modification, Respondent s h d  

complete the construction of the disposal system as authorized by the Wastewater permit and 

submit to the Department a Notification of Completion of Construction for Wastewater Facsty 

signed and sealed by the engineer of recordD If Respondent does not repair the A2 cell, then, 

upon submittal of Notification of Completion of Construction for Wastewater Facility, the 

Respondent shall abandon the A2 cell of the three-cell dripper system that was not constructed 

in accordance with Wastewater Permit FLAO11085-01. If the Respondent is unable or 

unwilling to construct a modification 

Paragraph, the Department reserves the 

comply with its d e s  and permits. 

12. Every calendar quarter 

of the plant's disposal system as provided in this 

right to seek other relief to require the Respondent to 

- 

after the effective date of this Consent Order, 

Respondent shall submit in writing to the Department a report containing information 

concerning the status and progress of projects being completed under this Consent Order, 

information as to compliance or noncompliance with the applicable requirements of this 

Consent Order including construction requirements and effluent limitations, and any reasons 

for noncompliance. Such reports shall also include a projection of the work to be performed 

pursuant to this Consent Order during the folowing 12 month period. The reports shall be 

submitted to the Department within thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter. 

13. In the event of a sale or conveyance of the facility or of the property upon 

which the facility is located, if a l l  of the requirements of this Consent Order have not been 

fully satisfied, Respondent shall, at least 30 days prior to the sale or conveyance of the 

property or facility, (1) notify the Department of such sale or conveyance, (2) provide the 

name and address of the purchaser, or operator, or person(s) in control of the facility, and (3) 

provide a copy of this Consent Order with all attachments to the new owner. The sale or 

conveyance of the facility, or the property upon which the facility is located shall not relieve 
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conveyance of the facility, or the property upon which the, facility is located shdl not refieve 

the Respondent of the obligations imposed in this Consent Order. 

. 14. Within 30 days of the effective date of this Consent Order, Respondent shall 

pay the Department $500.00 in settlement of the matters addressed in this Consent Order. 

This amount includes $0.00 in civil penakies for alleged violations of Section 403.161, Florida 

Statutes, and of the Department's rules and $500.00 for costs and expenses incurrd by the 

Department during the investigation of this matter and the preparation and tracking of this 

Consent Order. Payment shall be made by cashier's check or money order. The instrument 

shall be made payable to the "Department of Environmental Protection" and shall include 

thereon the OGC number assigned to this Consent Order and the notation "Ecosystem 

Management and Restoration Trust Fund" 

15. Respondent agrees to pay the Department stipulated penalties in the amount of 

$ 100.00 per day for each and every day Respondent fails to timely comply with any of the 

requirements of ~aragrapt~s 11, 12, 13 & 14 of this Consent order. A separate stipu~ated 

penalty shall be assessed for each violation of this Consent Order. Within 30 days of written 

demand from the Department, Respondent shall make payment of the appropriate stipulated 

penalties to "The Department of Environmental Protection" by cashier's check or money order 

and shall include thereon the OGC number assigned to this Consent Order and the notation 

"aosystem Management and Restoration Trust Fund." Payment shall be sent to the Florida 

Departmefit cf Environmental Protection, Central District Office, 3319 Maguire Boulevard, 

- 

Suite 232, Orlando, Florida 32803-3767. The Department may make demands for payment at 

any time after violations occur. Nothing in this Paragraph shall prevent the Department from 

filing suit to specifically enforce any terms of this Consent Order. Any penalties assessed 

under this Paragraph shall be in addition to the settlement sum agreed to in Paragraph 14 of 

this Consent Order. If the Department is required to file a lawsuit to recover stipulated 

penalties under this Paragraph, the Department wiIl not be foreclosed from seeking civil 

penalties for violations of this Consent Order in an amount greater than the stipulated penalties 

due under this Paragraph. 
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16. If any event, including administrative or judicid challenges by third parties 

unrelated to the Respondent, occurs which causes delay or the reasonable likelihood of delay, 

in complying with the requirements of this Consent Order, Respondent shall have the burden 

of proving the delay was or will be caused by circumstances beyond the reasonable contro1 of 

the Respondent and could not have been or cannot be overcome by Respondent's due 

diligence. Economic circumstances shall not be considered circumstances beyond the con&ol of 

Respondent, nor shall the failure of a contractor, subcontractor, materidman or other agent 

(collectively referred to as "contractor") to whom responsibility for performance is delegated 

to meet contractually imposed deadlines be a cause beyond the control of Respondent, unless 

the cause of the contractor's late performance was also beyond the contractor's control. Upon 

Occurrence of an event causing delay, or upon becoming aware of a potential for delay, 

Respondent shall notify the Department o d y  within 24 hours or by the next working day and 

shall, within seven dendar days of oral notification to the Department, notify the Department 

in writing of the anticipated length and cause of the delay, the measures taken or to be taken to 

prevent or minimize the delay and the timetable by which Respondent intends to implement 

these measures. If the parties can agree that the delay or anticipated delay has been or will be 

caused by circumstances beyond the reasonable control of Respondent, the time for 

performance hereunder shall be extended for a period equal to the agreed delay resuking Erom 

such circumstances. Such agreement shall adopt a l l  reasonable measures necessary to avoid or 

minimize delay. Failure of Respondent to comply with the notice requirements of this 

Paragraph in a timely manner shall constitute a waiver of Respondent's right to request an 

extension of time for compliance with the requirements of this Consent Order. 

- 

17. Persons who are not parties to this Consent Order, but whose substantial 

interests are affected by this Consent Order, have a right, pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 

120.57, Florida Statutes, to petition for an administrative hearing on it. The Petition must 

contain the information set forth below and must be filed (received) at the Department's Office 

of General Counsel, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS# 35, Tallahassee, Florida 

32399-3000 within 21 days of receipt of this norice. A copy of the Petition must also be 
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mailed at the time of fding to the District Office named above at the address indicated. Fai_lure 

to me a petition withh the 21 days constitutes a waiver of any right such person has to an 

administrative hearing pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes. 

The petition shall contain the following information: 

(a) The name, address, and telephone number of each petitioner; the Department's Consent 

Order identification number and the county in which the subject matter or activity is locat&; 

(b) A statement of how and when each petitioner received notice of the Consent Order; (c) A 

statement of how each petitioner's substantial interests are affected by the Consent Order; (d) 

A statement of the material facts disputed by petitioner, if any; (e) A statement of facts which 

petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the Consent Order; ( f )  A statement of 

which rules or statutes petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the Consent 

Order; (8) A statement of the relief sought by petitioner, stating precisely the action petitioner 

wants the Department to take with respect to the Consent Order. - 

If a petition is filed, the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate agency 

action. Accordingly, the Department's final action may be different from the position taken by 

it in this Notice. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any decision of the 

Department with regard to the subject Consent Order have the right to petition to become a 

party to the proceeding. The petition must conform to the requirements specified above and be 

filed (received) within 21 days of receipt of this notice in the Office of General Counsel at the 

above address of the Department. Failure to petition within the allowed time frame constitutes 

a waiver of any right such person has to request a hearing under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, 

Florida Statutes, and to participate as a party to this proceeding. Any subsequent intervention 

will only be at the approval of the presiding officer upon motion filed pursuant to RuIe 28- 

106.205, Florida Administrative Code. 

A person whose substantid interests are affected by the Consent Order may file a 

timely petition for an administrative hearing under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida 

Statutes, or may choose to pursue mediation as an alternative remedy under Section 120.573, 

Florida Statutes, before the deadline for filing a petition. Choosing mediation will not 
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adversely affect the right to a hearing if mediation does not result in a settlement. 

procedures for pursuing mediation are set forth below. 

The: 

Mediation may only take place if the Department and all the parties to the proceeding . 

agree that mediation is appropriate. A person may pursue mediation by reaching a mediation 

agrement with dl parties to the proceeding (which include the Respondent, the Department, 

and my person who has filed a timely and sufficient petition for a hearing) and by showing 

how the substantial interests of each mediating party are affected by the Consent Order. The 

agreement must be filed in (received by) the Office of General Counsel of the Department at . 

3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, within 10 days 

after the deadline as set forth above for the filing of a petition. 

The agreement to mediate must include the following: 

(a) The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of any persons who may attend the 

mediation; 

(b) The name, address, and telephone number of the mediator selected by the parties, 

or a provision for selecting a mediator within a specified time; 

(c) The agreed allocation of the costs and fees associated with the mediation; 

(d) The agreement of the parties on the confidentiality of discussions and documents 

introduced during mediation; 

(e) The date, time, and place of the first mediation session, or a deadline for holding 

the fxst session, if no mediator has yet been chosen; 

( f )  The name of each party’s representative who shall have authority to settle or 

recommend settlement; and 

(8) Either an explanation of how the substantial interests of each mediating party will 

be affected by the action or proposed action addressed in this notice of intent or a statement 

clearly identifying the petition for hearing that each party has already fled, and incorporating 

it by reference. 

(h) The signatures of all parties or their authorized representatives. 

As provided in Section 120.573, Florida Statutes, the timely agreement of all parties to 
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mediate will toll the time limitations imposed by Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Norib  

Statutes, for requesting and holding an administrative hearing. Unless otherwise agreed by h e  

parties, the mediation must be concluded within sixty days of the execution of the agreement. 

If mediation results in settlement of the administrative dispute, the Department must enter a 

final order incorporating the agreement of the parties. Persons whose substantial interests wfi 

be affected by such a modified final decision of the Department have a right to petition for a 

hearing only in accordance with the requirements for such petitions set forth above, and must 

therefore fde their petitions within 21 days of receipt of this notice. If mediation terminam 

without settlement of the dispute, the Department shall notify a l l  parties in writing that the 

administrative hearing processes under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, remain 

available for disposition of the dispute, and the notice will specify the deadlines that then will 

apply for challenging the agency action and electing remedies under those two statutes. 

* 

18. Respondent shall allow all authorized representatives of the Department access 

to the property and facility at reasonable times for the purpose of determining compliance with 

the terms of this Consent Order and the rules and statutes of the Department. 

19. All submittals and payments required by this Consent Order to be submitted to 

the Department shall be sent to the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Central 

District Office, 3319 Maguire Boulevard, Suite 232, Orlando, Florida 32803-3767. 

20. This Consent Order is a settlement of the Department’s civil and administrative 

authority arising under Florida law to resolve the matters addressed herein. Tliis Consent 

Order is not a settlement of any criminal liabilities which may arise under Florida law, nor is 

it a settlement of any violation which may be prosecuted criminally or civilly under federal 

law. 

21. The Department hereby expressly reserves the right tu initiate appropriate legal 

action to prevent or prohibit any violations of applicable statutes, or the rules promulgated 

thereunder that are not specifically addressed by the terms of this Consent Order. 

22. The terms and conditions set forth in this Consent Order may be enforced in a 

court of competent jurisdiction pursuant to Sections 120.69 and 403.121, Florida Statutes. 
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Failure to comply with the terms of this Consent Order shall constitute a violation of Section 

403,161(1)@), Florida Statutes. 

23. The Department, for and in consideration of the complete and timely 

performance by Respondent of the obligations agreed to in this Consent Order, hereby waives 

its right to seek judicial imposition of damages or civil penalties for alleged violations through 

tfie date of the frling of this Consent Order as addressed in this Consent Order. 

24. Respondent is fully aware that a violation of the tems of this Consent Order 

may subject Respondent to judicial imposition of damages, civil penalties up to $ lO,Oo .OO per 

day per violation, and criminal penalties. 

25. Entry of this Consent Order does not relieve Respondent of the need to comply 

with applicable federal, state or local laws, regulations or ordinances. 

26. No modifications of the terms of this Consent Order shall be effective una 

reduced to writing and executed by both Respondent and the Department. r 

27. Respondent achowledges and waives its right to an administrative hearing 

pursuant to Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, on the terms of this Consent Order. 

Respondent acknowledges its right to appeal the terms of this Consent Order pursuant to 

Sation 120.68, Florida Statutes, and waives that right upon signing this Consent Order. 

This Consent Order is a final order of the Department pursuant to Section 28. 

120.52(7), Florida Statutes, and it is final and effective on the date filed with the Clerk of the 

Depmment unless a Petition for Administrative Hearing is filed in accordance with Chapter 

120, Florida Statutes. Upon the timely filing of a petition this Consent Order wiU not be 

effective until further order of the Department. 
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